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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited

Report on the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements of
PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited (“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the
Holding company and its subsidiarics together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the
consolidated Special Purpose Balance Shect as at 31st March 2025, the Consolidated Special purpose
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Loss, the Consolidated Special purpose
Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Special purpose Statements of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statement, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to use except
for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
aforesaid Consolidated Special purpose financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31st, 2025 and their Consolidated profit including other comprehensive income/(loss) and their
Consolidated Cash Flows and the Consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As explained in Note 58 the Group does not have the details pertaining fo the opening balance of
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR) as on 0lst April 2023 amounting to Rs.384 lakhs
Consequently, we were unable to perform the procedures as required by SA 510, Initial Audit
Engagements — Opening Balances.

Further, we are unable to confirm the accuracy of an amount of Rs.475 lakhs adjusted in Retained
Larnings as the impact of transition to Ind AS pursuant to Ind AS 101, First Time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards. The undetermined impact, if any. of differences other than related to Ind AS
transition, may have a consequential effect on the Retained Earnings as on 01 April 2023.

We further report that the balance of FC'TR as rcported for the years ended 31st March 2024 and 31st
March 2025 are not impacted by the above and are not subject to this qualification




) A °
W " (“‘\("\"f\ raits ’v"\("\

= W0 _ﬁ LoD AL D

CI wartered f\rcoumcmlc

Basis of Accounting and Restriction and Use

1. Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated special
purpose financial statements, which describe the basis of accounting. These consolidated special
purpose [inancial statements have been prepared solely to assist the Holding Company in
facilitating post-merger accounting and consolidation into its books. As a result, these consolidated
special purpose financial statements may not be suitable for any other purposc.

3]

Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the auditors of the Holding Company, for the purpose of facilitating consolidation
into the financial statements of the Holding Company. It is not intended to be and should not be
used or relied upon by any other party for any other purpose. We do not accept or assume any
responsibility or liability to any party other than the HHolding Company and its auditors, for the
contents of this report, or for any reliance placed on it, unless we have provided our prior written
conscnt.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s report thereom (Other
Information)

The Holding Company’s Board of Dircectors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director Report but does not include the
Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements and auditor’s report there on. The Holding
company s Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s reporL.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Special Purposc Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears (o be materially misstated. If based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated special purpose financial statements that
give a true and fair view of thc consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including consolidated other comprehensive income/(loss). consolidated cash flows and consolidated
changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under scction 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of h’ SS0a
respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selectior k
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application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequale internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and prescntation of the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statement that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements by the
Board of Directors of the Holding company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors
of the companics included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Dircctors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the company’s financial reporting process of their respective companics.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Special Purpose
Financial Statements as a whole are [ree [rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always dctect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considercd material if.
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
ol users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we cxercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Special Purpose
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit cvidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Company’s
Act 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Special Purpose
Financial Statements system in place and the operating cffectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pohues used and the reasonableness of accountmgc.
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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d) Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accountin g
and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Special Pur pose
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may causc the Group to cease to continue as a going
concerr.

¢) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Special Purposc
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Special Purpose
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

t) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the group of which are the independent auditors and whose
financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the Consolidated Special
Purposc [Financial Statements. We arc responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors.
For the other entities included in the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the cconomic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards 5
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of two
subsidiarics (Purc Conference Solutions private Limited (India) and Pure software Private Limited
(Nepal)) located India with total assets, total revenue and net cash flows amounting of “Nil” as at 3157
March 2025 and located outside India with total assels of Rs.3.05 Lakhs and total revenue (including
other Income) of “Nil” and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 3.7 Lakhs as considered in Consolidated
Special Purpose FFinancial Statement respectively.

Our opinion inso far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries.
is solely on the representations given o us by the management.

Further, both the subsidiaries [inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles accepted in the respective country and the Holding company’s
management has converted the financial statements of subsidiaries located outside India to generally
accepled accounting principles in India. We have reviewed these conversion adjustments made by the
Holding company’s management. Our opinion on the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial
Statement and our report in terms of Sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable,
in so far as it relates to the balances and afTairs of such subsidiary located outside India are based on
and conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding company and reviewed by us.

Our opinion above on the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements, and our report on the
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, not qualified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the other f[inancial information certified by the

Management

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, were audited by another
firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated August 01, 2024 expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated
Special Purpose Financial Statements.

(b) 1n our opinion, proper books of account as requircd by law maintained by the Group, including
relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Special Purpose Financial
Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports

of the other auditors, except for the requirement with regard to audit trails as stated ig,!{rg?
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paragraph 2(i)(vi), as mandated under rule 11(g). ol /
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The Consolidated special purpose Balance Sheet, the Consolidated special purpose Statement
of Profit and Loss including the Consolidated spccial purposc Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income/(Loss), the Consolidated special purpose Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated special purpose Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account maintained for the purposc of preparation of Consolidated
Special Purpose Financial Statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the wrilten representations received from the directors of the Iolding Company
as on March 31, 2025 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company
and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under scction 139 of the Act, of its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 [rom being appointed as a director
in terms of scction 164(2) of the Act;

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Special Purpose Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, and the operating cffectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in " Annexure A" to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act in respect of managerial
remuneration are not applicable to the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India for the year ended March 31, 2025; and

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us :

i The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its Consolidated Special
Purpose Financial Statements — Refer Note 37 to the Consolidated Special Purpose
Financial Statements:;

ii.  Provision has been made in the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements, as
required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material forcseeable
losses, If any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in Indrrlr- SOR \

during the year ended March 31, 2025;
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vi.

(a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India and whose financial stalements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries Lo or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediary™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiary") provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiary

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiarics,
from any person or cntity, including foreign entity ("Funding Party"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or
any of such subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiary") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiary; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries which are companics incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has
caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a)
and (b) above contain any material mis-statement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the company during this year and unstill the
date of this report is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, in accordance with the

Implementation Guidance on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 (Revised 2024 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants ol India the company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books
of account and has cnabled the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares, except as detailed below:
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Based on the procedures performed, we noted that the subsidiary entities as detailed below used
the same tools as the holding company for financial reporting purposes and hence the same
qualifications would apply for those entities as well.

1) Pure Conference Solutions private Limited (India)
2) Puresoftware Private Limited (Nepal)
3)Puresoftware Pte Ltd (Singapore)
4) Puresoftware K Limited (Hong Kong)
5)Puresoftware Corp. (USA)
6) Puresoftware Sdn.Bhd. (Malaysia)
7)Puresoftware Technology S DE EL DE CV (Mexico)
&) Puresoftware Africa Limited (Kenya)
9) Puresoftware Pty Limited (Australia)

10) Puresoftware Private Limited (UK)

11) Puresoftware Technologies Romania SRL (Romania)

a) Inrespect of the software used for maintaining payroll records, audit trail (edit
log) feature was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 01-04-
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is applicable
for the year ended 31-03-2025. Audit trails are preserved for the relevant period as per
statutory requirements for the year ended 31-03-2025.
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2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO™/ “the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Scction 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
CARO reports issucd by us and the auditors of respective companies included in the Consolidated
Special Purpose Financial Statements to which reporting under CARO is applicable, as provided to us
by the Management of the Parent, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the
respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said companices included in the Consolidated Special
Purposc Financial Statements.

For J A A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0136998

Aradhana Ashok
Partner
Membership No. 214452

UDIN: 25214452BMIAKF7254

Place: Bengaluru
Date:12-05-2025
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Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph (h) under ‘Report on the Other legal and regulatory requirements’
of the section of our report on even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Stalements of Pure
software Technologies Private Limited ("the Holding Company") and its subsidiarics (together
referred to as "the Group") as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and cfficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of [rauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
rcliable financial information, as required under the Act.2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, and both
issued by the ICAIL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Special Purpose Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements, assessing the risk that
a malerial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor's
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the 'Other Matter' paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements of the group and its subsidiary, which are
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's inlernal [inancial controls with reference to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial
Statemenls is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain (o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
rcasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Special
Purpose Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitatiens of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal {inancial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Special Purpose Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to crror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any cvaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Special Purpose Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
procedures may deteriorate.

e
N8d Accor-
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, have maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporling criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAL

ForJ A A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0136998 AT

Aradhana Asholc
Partner
Membership No. 214452

UDIN: 25214452BMIAKF7254

Place: Bengaluru
Date:12-05-2025




PureSoftware Technologics Private Limited
Consolidated Special Purpose Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unlcss otherwise siated)

Particulars Note no. As at Asal Opening Balance As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
A Assels
L. Nono-current assels
() Property, plant and cquipment 3 373 357 -
(b) Other Intangible assels 4 229 254 -
{¢) Right-of-use assels 5 365 529 =
(d) Financial asscts
(i) Other Financial Assets 10 127 97 -
{e) Deferred tax assel (net) 6 620 602 2
{f) Other Non Current Asscts 12 100 167 -
Total non-current assefs 1,814 2,006 2
2. Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade reccivables 7 6,419 6,625 -
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents ] 4,202 23,335 1
(iii) Loans 9 350 - -
(iv) Other financial ssets 10 3,664 2,170 -
(b) Other current assets 12 317 160 >
Total current assels 14,952 11,290 1
TOTAL ASSETS 16,766 13,296 3
B Equity and linbilities
I Equity
1. Equily share capital 13 324 324 1
Instruments cntircly equity in nature 14 - 0 =
2. Other equity 15 1,851 G.134 -5
Equity atiributable to equity holders of the parent 4,175 6458 -4
Non-controlling interest 0 0 5
Total Equity 4,175 6,458 -4
11 Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial linbilities
(i) Bomowings 16 6,272 - -
(ii) Lease liabilities 17 108 331 -
(b} Provisions 20 1,117 833
Tatal non-current labilitles 7497 1,164 =
2. Current liabilities
(a) Contract Liability 22 301 205 -
(b) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 16 - - 5
(ii) Lease liabilities 17 276 20 %
(iii) Trade payables 18
Toltal outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterpriscs 39 54 z
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises 1,353 1,570 1
and Small Enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 19 317 1,785 -
(¢) Current tax liability (nct) 11 227 7 =
(d) Other current liabilities 2] 1,181 966 1
(<) Provisions 20 1,400 878 -
Total current Habilities 5,094 5,674 7
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,766 1=L£96 3

As per our report of even date
for JAA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm's Registration

</

Aradhana Ashok [/ ==y

Pastner 4 | FRN No.: 0137995

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 May 2025 |

Sec accompanying notes forming part of the financial sialements in Note | to 2
The notes refersed to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statemems

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors:
PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited
CIN: U72900DL2021PTC388597

W

Venkatraman Narayanan

Director
DIN-01856347

Tlace: Bengalura
Date: 12 May 2025

> Qe

Darshankar Praveen Kumar
Director
DIN-01856347

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 May 2025




PurcSoftware Technologies Private Limited
Consolidated Speeial Purpose Profit & Loss as at 31 March 2025
(Al amounls in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i For the year ended For the year erded
Particul: t 3
e Nitaiio 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
1. |Revemue from Contracts with customers 23 40,043 35,017
2. |Other income 24 71 -29
3. |Total Income (1 +2) 40,114 34,988
4. |Expenses
(a) Emplayee benefits expense 25 26,463 25461
(b) Finance cosls 26 358 132
(c) Depreciation and amortization expense 27 511 580
(d) Other expenses 28 4,853 7157
Total expenses 32,185 33330
5. |Profit! (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (3-) 7,929 1,658
6. |Tax expense:
(a) Current tax. 29 2,189 898
(b) Shoit/(Excess) provision for earlier years 29 -109 74
(c) Deferred tax 29 -16 -360
Total tax expense 2,064 612
7. |Profit/ (Luss) for the period (5-6) 5,865 1,046
8. |Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods
Exchange differences on translating the financial staterents of a foreign operation 76 32
Net movement an effective portion of cash flow hedges 23 -
Income tax effect -6 -
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans -31 28
Income tax efect 8 ]
Other conprehensive income for the year, net of tax T0 53
9, |Tetal Comprehensive Income for the period 5,935 1,099
10. [Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted attributable to equity shareholders 30
Basic 18.10 3.24
Diluted 18.10 3.24

Sce accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
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|PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited

Consolidated Special Purpose Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particubiry 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit / (Loss) before tax 7,929 1,658
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and anortisation expense 511 580
Provision for doubtful debts 51 -87
Bad dcbts 14 =
Unwinding interest on OCRPS 311 -
Interest expenses on Lease liability 47 59
Employee stock option Expenses - 6356
Adjusument on transition to Ind AS -7 16
Interest income -229 -5
Profit/(loss) on sale of fixed asset -5 815
Net gain/loss on foreign currency trunsaction 19 2
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 8,643 3,690
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 122 -948
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets -1,500 -1,386
([ncrease)/Decrease in other current assels -156 57
(Increase)/Decrease in loans Given =350 725
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables -231 1,026
Increase/(Decrease) in other Financial liabilities -1,468 401
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 214 965
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 753 661
Increase/(Decrease) in other non-current asset 67 -165
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liability 97 -174
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 6,191 4,852
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) -1,860 -965
Net cash generated / (used in) operating activitics (A) 4,330 3,887
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment -241 -133
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 10 36
Interest received 228 5
Net cash generated / (used in) investing activities (B) -3 -92
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Share capital including premium -0 1
Proceeds from borrowings 1,245 -
Repayment of borrowings - -2,104
Dividend Paid -3,500 -
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities =281 -241
Net cash from financing activities (C) -2,536 -1,344
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,791 1,452
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 2,335 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents acquired pursuant 1o scheme of arrangement a 850
Change in FCTR 76 32
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,202 2335
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks 3252 1,360
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 950 975
Less : Bank overdraft - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 4,202 1335
Non-cash investing activities:
Acquisition of Right-of-use assets 170 -
| Acquisition of Right-of-use assets pursuant to scheme of arrangement - 707

As per our report of even date attached
for JAA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm's Registration Number; 01
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PurcSeftware Technolozies Private Limited

Consolidated Speelal Purpose Statement of Changes in Equity

(ANl amounts in INR lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares As at 3] March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at | April 2023
Number Amount Numher Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of Rs.10 cach
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 324,11,166 3 100,000 1 - 1
Add: Shares Isswed pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - - 323,25 246 323 - -
Add: Shares issucd on exercise of employee stock aptions - = 85,920 1 s -
Less: Cancellation of Share Capital pucsuant to Scheme of Arangement - - -1,00,000 -1 - -
Add: Shares issued on conversion of prefrence shares 100 ] - - % 5
Qutstanding at the end of the year 3,24,11,266 324 3,24,11,166 34 - 1
B. Otlier Equity
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent
Reserves & Surplus Other I of equity
For the year ended March 31,2025 Secari e Other Total
curities e General Reserve| Capital Reserve FCTR Hedge Reserve | comprehensive
premium Earnings
_income
As at April 1,2024 60 3,064 ns 234 -59 - - 6,134
Profit for the year - 5,865 - - - - - 5,865
Other comprehensive income = = i = = 17 2 %
Total comprehensive income - 5,865 - - - 17 =23 5,859
Add : Additions during the year - - - % = = < R
Add: Adjustment (o FCTR - - - - 76 - - 76
Add: Adjustment to OCI - 14 - - - - 13 a1
Add: Adji to Retained ings on R 18 . .
to Ind AS B ) 18
Less: Issue of OCRPS - 4,716 - - - - - 4,716
Less: [ssuc of Dividend - -3.500 - - - = - -3.500
As at March 31, 2025 60 687 715 234 18 17 - 3,850
C. Other Equity
Atiributable to the equity holders of the parent
Reserves & Surplas Oth ents of equit)
For the year ended March 31, SFcompon fequity e Titad
2024 t er
Seciftics Hetsined General Reserve| Capital Reserve FCTR Hedge Reserve | comprehensive
premium Earnings ta s
Asat April 1, 2023 - -5 - - - - - -5
Profit for the year - 1,046 = = = z % 1,046
Other comprehensive income = -~ - - - - 21 11
Total comprehensive income - 1,046 - - - - 21 1,067
Add : Additions during, the year 60 - - 32 - - 92
Add: Adjustment to FCTR - 475 - - -475 .. = »
Add: Adjustment to OCL - 21 - - - 5 221 z
Add: Additions pursuant to Scheme of Amangement - _ 1,527 725 2344 384 } B
refer note 40 4,950
Add: Reduction of Share Capital pursuant to Scheme R . B 1
of Armingement -refer note 40 N N " 1
Add: Loss on el of L T 10 . : N a1
Scheme of Arrangement-refer note 40 - " 1
As at March 31, 2024 ol 3,064 125 2344 -59 - - 6,134

As per our report ol even date attached
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PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

Corporate Information
Puresoftware Technologies Private Limited (“The Group”) is engaged in the business of Product Engineering, Digital Solutions, ERP Implementation, Managed Services, Applicalion Development
& Customizations, Independent QA & QE, Support & Maintenance, System Integration and Software Services.

The Group is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at SIR Equinox, Sy-No .47/8, Doddathogur Village, Begur Hobli, Electronics City Phase 1,
Hosur Road, Electronics City, Bangalore South, Kamataka, India, 560100

These financial statements have been prepared for the year ended 31st March 2025,

Hidated i ol Stat {
d ¥

Basis of preparation of C
Statement of Compliance
The Consolidated Financial Statements (SES) of The Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division IT of Schedule 111 to the Companics Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I11), as applicable to
the SFS.

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated,

These Consolidated Fi ial Sta have been prepared for The Group as a going concem on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are effective at The Group's annual reporting date, March 31,
2025.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for the following that are measured at fair value as required by relevant
Ind AS:

a) Certain financial liabilities measured at fair value (refer ting policy regarding financial instry ts)

b) Derivative financial instruments

Functional currency and presentation currency
These Consolidated Fi ial § ts are presented in India Rupee (INR), which is also functional currency of The Group. All the values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000)
unless otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these Consolidated Fi ial Statements, gement has made judg; s, estimates and asswnptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of]
asscts, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial Statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Appraopriate changes in estimates are made as t b aware ol changes in ci surrounding estimate. Changes in cstimate arc reflected in the financial statements in the
pentod in which changes are made and, if matenal, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Judgements;

Information about judgements made in applying accouating policics that have the most material effects on the amounts gnised in the Consolidated Financial St is included in the
following notes:

- Note 2 (b) and Note 2 (¢)- Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;
- Note 2 (c) - Lease classification;

- Note 2(f) - Financial instrument; and

- Note 2 (k) - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

Assumption and eslimation uncertaintics
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended March 31, 2025 is included in the following nates:

- Note 2 (d) - Impairment test of non-financial assets; key assumptions undetlying recaverable amounts including the recoverability of expenditure on internally-generated intangible assels;

- Note 2 {m) - Recognition of deferred Lax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;

- Note 2 (f) - Impaiyment of financial assets

- Note 2 (n) - Recagnition and measurement of provisions and conlingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;
- Note 2(g) - Fair valuc measurement

Current and non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheel based on current/ non-current classification,
An asset is treated as current when it is:

TR - o

= Exg { 10 be or to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

= Expected to be realized within twelve months afler the reporting period, ar

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve manths after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-curvent.

A liability is treated s current when:

= It is expected to be seitled in normal operaling cyele,

= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

* It is duc to be sculed within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred Lax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and eash equivalents. The Group has identificd twelve months as its operating cycle.




PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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lidated Fi ial St

Basis of preparation of C
Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial S| nis comprise the financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiary as at March 31, 2025. Control is achicved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, (o
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over (he investee.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there ase changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and eeases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary, Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ecases to control the subsidiary.

Cansolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policics for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If 8 member of the Group uses accounting policics
other than those adopled in the Consolidated Fi ial S s for like tr and events in similar circumstances, appropriale adjustments are made to that Group member”s financial
statements in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements Lo ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all enfities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent, i.c., year ended on March 31. When the end of the reporting
period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for lidation pusposes, additional fi ial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the
parent to enable the parent to lidate the finaacial infe ion of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure;

() Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash fows of the Parent with those of its subsidiarics on line by line basis. For this purpase, incone and expenses of the
subsidiaries are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements at the acquisition date.

(b) OfEset {eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains lsow to account
for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilitics, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup
transactions that arc recognised in asscts, such as inventory and fixed assets, arc eliminated in futll). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the Consalidated
Financial Statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies lo temporary differences that arise from the climination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit and loss and cach component of OCI are attribuled to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relaling to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in (he ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a [oss of control, is accounicd for as an cquity transaction.

[f the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilitics, non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or
Toss is recognised in profit and loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fhir value.

The subsidiarics which are included in the consolidation and the Company's holdings therein are as under:

ip int L
Ormership’interes Ownership interest as at

Name of Company Nature of Business Country of incorporation ;; ! ;I March 31, March 31, 2024
PureSoftware Pte Limited IT services Singapore 100% 100%
PureSoftware Corp IT services USA 100% 100%
PureSaftware Technology. 8. de R.L. de C.V IT services Mexico 99.90% 99.90%
TPure Software Private Limited IT services UK 100% 100%
PurcSoftware Sdn Bhd IT services Malaysia L00% 100%
PurcSoftware Pty Ltd IT services Australia 100% 100%
PurcSoftware HK Limited IT services Hong Kong 100% 100%
PurcSoftware Africa Ltd IT services Kemya 100% L00%
Puresoftware Technologies Romania S.R.L. IT services Romania 100% 100%
PureSoftware Private Limited IT services Nepal 100% 100%
PureConference Solutions Private Limited 1T services India 100% 100%




PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless othenvise stated)

(a)

—

Material accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these Cs lidated Financial Stat

Revenue recognition

The Group derives revenue primarily from rendering of services and sale of licenses. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services 1o customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration The Group expects to reecive in exchange for those products or services. The Group is principal in rendering of services and agent in relation to sale of licenses. Amounts
disclosed as revenue are net of trade allowances, rebates and Goods and Services tax (GST), amounts collected on behalf of third parties and include reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenscs, with
corresponding expenses included in cost of revenues.

Revenue from the rendering of services and sale of license is recognized when The Group satisfies its performance obligations 1o its customers as below:

Revenue from rendering of services

The Group applies judgement (o detenmine whether each product or service promised to a customer is capable of being distinct, and is distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised
product or service is combined and accounted as a single performance obligation. In delermining the transaction price for rendering of services, The Group considers the effect of variable
consideration, existence of a significant fi nzmcnm component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customers if any. Revenue is recognized as net of (rade and cash discounts.
The Group allocates the u ion Lo sep ly identifiable performance obligation delivembles based on their relative stand-alone selling price. In cases where The Group is
unable to determine the stand-alone selling price, The Group uses the expected cost-plus margin approach in estimating the stand-alone selling price. Volume discounts are recorded as a reduction
of revenue. When the amount of discount varics with the levels of revenue, volume discount is recorded based on cstimate of fture revenue from the customer.

Revenues from services comprise primarily income from fime-and-material and fixed price contracts. Revenue with respect to time-and-material contracts is recognized over the period of time as
the related services are performed. Revenue with respect to fixed price contracts where performance obligation is transferred over time are recognized nsing the percentage of completion method.
The Group uses the percentage of completion method using the input (cost expended) method to measure progress towards completion in respect of fixed price contracts. Percentage of completion
method accounting relics on estimates of total expected contract revenue and costs, This method is followed when reasonably dependable estimates of the revenues and costs applicable to various|
clements of the contract can be made. Key factors that are reviewed in estimating the future costs (o complete include estimates of future labor costs and productivity efficiencies. Because the|
financial reporting of hese contracts depends on estimates that are assessed continually during the term of these contracts, revenue recognized, profit and timing of revenue for Temaining|
performance obligations are subject to revisions as the cantract progresses to completion. When estimates indicate that a loss will be incusred, the loss is provided for in the period in which the loss
L probable. Provisions for estimated losses on contracts-in-progress are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current contract estimates,

Trade receivables
A receivable is recognized if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of|
financial assets.

Revenue rom license
Revenue for supply of third party products, services or licenses are recorded at gross or net basis depending on whether The Group is acting as the principal or as an agent of the customer. The
Group recognizes revenue in the gross amount of consideration when it is acting as a principal and at net amount of consideration when it is acting as an agent.

Where the Group is a rescller for sale of right to use licenses and acting as agent in the arrangement, the revenue for sale of right to use license is recognised on a net basis. In case, where the|
licenses are required to be substantially customized as part of implementation service, the entive arrangement fee is considered as single performance obligation and is recognized as per
input method.

Where the Group acts as principal, revenue from sale of licenses, where the customer obtains a “right to use" the licenses is recognized at the point in time when the related license is made available
to the ¢ bt from li where the customer obtains a “right (o access™ is recognized over the access period and is included in Revenue fram Services.

Contract balances

Conlract liabilities: A contract liability (which we referred to as Uncarned Revenue) is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which The Group has received consideration (or
an amount of cansideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before The Group transfers goods or services (o the customer, a contract liability is recoguized when the|
payment is received.




PureSoftware Technalogies Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Fi ial St: ts for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless othenvise stated)

b)

Material ing policies - continued

Interest income

Interest income is recagnized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to The Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is acerued on a time basis,
by reference to the principle ouistanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recagnition. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the Statements of profit and loss.

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cosl, interest income is recorded using the effective foterest rate, which is the rte that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments o
receipts over the expected lifc of the financinl instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income in the
Statements of profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipnient

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less lated depreciation, and acc d impairment loss, if any. Historical cost comprises of the purchase price including duties
and non-refundable taxes, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met, directly attributable expenses incurred to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of]
being aperated in the manner intended by management and initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities.

Subsequent costs related to an item of property, plant and equipment are recognized as a separate asscl, as ppropriate, only when it is probable that future ¢conomic benefits associated with the
item will flow to The Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any compenent accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period when they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecagnized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from ils usc or disposal. The gains or losses arising from derecognition are|
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Property, plant and cquipment individually costing INR 5,000 or less are depreciated at 100% in the year in which such assets are ready 1o usc.

Depreeiation is caleulated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

The estimates of useful lives of tangible asscts are as follows:

Class of asset Uscful life as per schedule I1 Useful life as per Company

Furmiture and fixtures 10 years 10 years
Office equipment 5 years - 15 years 5 years
Other plant & equipment 5 years - 15 years 5-10 years
Vehicles 8 years § years
Computer systems 6 years for servers 3 years
3 years for other than servers
The useful lives have been determined based on technical cvaluation done by the s expert which in certain instances are different from those specified by Schedule IT to the Companies

Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the asscts. The assets residual values and useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if apprapriate, at the end of each reporting period. An assel's
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.




PareSoftware Technologies Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial St ts for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amaunts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Material accounting policies - continued
Property, plant and equipment - continued

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of busi is included in i ible assets. Goodwill is not amortised bt it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if cvents or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less sccumulated impairment losses, Gains and losses on the disposal of a business include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
business sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpase of impairment testing. The allocation is made Lo those cash-generating units or Company of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or Company of units are identificd at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management

purposes.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately arc measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets arc carried al cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

An item of intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future cconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gains or losses arising from derccognition are measured s the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and arc recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the assct is derecognised.

Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line methed over the following periods:

Asset Life in Years

Arttha Banking (Intangible Software) 10 years

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortisation period are reviewed at the end of the each financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if]
any.

Rescarch costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when The Group can demonstrate:
~The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

-lts intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

-How the asset will generate future cconomic benefits

-The availability of resources to complete the assct

-The ability to measure reliably the i

¢ during develop

Subscquent costs related Lo infangible asscts are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future ic benefits iated with the item will flow to The Group
and the cost of the ilem can be measured reliably.

Imwpairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at cach reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, The,
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal aud its value in use, The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual esset, unless the asset does not generate cash mflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or eroups ol assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds ils recoverable amount, the assel is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows arc discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

1enl

The Group bases ils impairment calculation on defailed budgets nnd forecast ions, which arc prepared sep ly for cach of The Group’s cash generating unit's (CGU's) to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and fi t lations g lly cover a pesiod of five years. For langer periods, a long-term growth: rate is caleulated and applied to project future
cash flows afler the fifth year. To esti cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, The Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using n
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justificd. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or couniry or countries in which The Group operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication cxists, The Group estimates the asset’s or cash generating unit's (CGU's) recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment tally and when ci indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoveruble amount of each cash generating unit (CGU) (or group of CGUS) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of]
the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.
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(e)

Leases
The Group has lease coniracts for various items of vehicles and buildings used in its operations. Lease terms generally ranges between 1 and 5 years.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as lessce
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease labilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assels

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any’
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any r ement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direet costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date Jess any lease incentives received. Right-of-usc assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of]
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets,

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to The Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policics in note 2(c) for policy on impairment of non-financial assets.

Leasc liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, The Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fised payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 1o be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the isc price of a purchase option bly cerfain to be excreised by The Group and payments of penallies for tenminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects The Group excrcising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventaries) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, The Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement dale because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
deteaminable. After ihe commencement date, the amount of lease liabilitics is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease tenm, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to futire payments resulting from a change in an index or rale
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an eplion to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applics the shori-tenmn lease recogmition exemption to its shon-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.c., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the,
commencement date and do not contain a purchasc option). It also applics the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leascs and leases of lo lue assets are gnised as exp on a straight-line basis over the lease lerm.

Lease and non-lease component

As per Ind AS - 116, “As a practical expedicnt, a lessee may cleet, by class of underlying asset, not to separate non-lcase Ip from leasc comy ts, and instead account for cach lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component.”

The Group have not opted for this practical expedient and have accounted for Lease component only.

Extension and termination option

The Group has several lease contracls that include extension and termination options. Thesc options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and
align with The Group's business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised,
Management have not considered any future cash outflow for which they are potentially exposed arising duc to extension and termination options.

Financial Instruments
Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or ¢quity instrument of another entity.

Non-derivative financial instroments :

a)Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fir value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and The Group's busi model for ing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing companent or for which The Group has applied the practical expedient, The Group initially measures a financial asset al its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which The|
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS - 115.

In‘order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), it needs ta give rise ta cash flows that are *solely payments of
principle and interest (SPPT)’ on the principle amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPP) 1est and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are
nat SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irespective of the business model.

The Group's busi maedel for ing fi ial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in arder to generate cash lows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial asscts classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial asscts in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model with the|
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame cstablished by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.c., the date that The Group commits to purchase or sell the asscl.
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Material accounting policies - continued
Financial Instruments - continued
a)Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from The Group's balance sheet) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Group has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 1o a third party under a ‘pass-
through” amangement; and cither (a) The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially al) the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

When The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, The Group continues to recopnise the transferred
asset to the extent of The Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, The Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred assel and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that The Group has retained.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determi lassification of financial assets on initial recognition. Afier initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt insiruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the busi model for ping those assels. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to The Group’s operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when The Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If The Group
reclassifics finnncial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Impairment of financial asscts

In accordance with Ind AS - 109, The Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for nent and gnition of impairment loss on the following financinl assets and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial assets are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivables, unbilled receivables and bank balance

b) Trade reeeivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS - 115.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impainnent loss allowance on:

* Trade receivables, unbilled receivables

The application of simplificd approach docs not require The Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash lows that The Group expects lo receive, discounted at an approximation of
the eriginal effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual (enms,

For recognition of impainment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, The Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If
eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impainment loss. However, if eredit risk has increased significantly, lifctime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period,
credit quality of the instument impraves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reveris to recognising impairment loss allowance
based on 12-month ECL.
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Material accounting policies - continued
Financial Instruments - continued
b) Financial Liabilities :

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, s appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recopnised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. .

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis. The subsequent nent of i ial liabilities depends on (heir!
classification, which is described below.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial Jiabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial linbilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition as at Fair Value Through Prafit or Loss
(FVTPL). Financial liabilitics are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in \he near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments|
entered into by The Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS - 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also elassified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Tnd AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilitics designated as FVTPL, fair value pains or losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). These gains/ loss are nat subsequently
trunsferred Lo profit and Joss. However, The Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair valuc through profit or loss,

¢) Optionally Convertible Redeemahble Preference Shares

At initia] recognition and ailer initial recognition, Optionally Convertible Redecmable Preft Shares are subsequently measured at Fair value cost and measured through Profit & Loss. Gains or
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilitics arc derecognised.

For more information refer note 16.

Derccognition .
Afi ial liability is d guised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by anather from the sane lender on

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability arc subslmltra]ly mndlﬁccl, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derccognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying is recogmised in the Sa of Prafit and Loss,

d) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, The Group current has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Derivative financial Instroments and hedge accounting:

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement :

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively, Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequenily re-measured al fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilitics when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income (OCT) and Iater reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if o hedged forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge m:u]un!ing, hedges are classified as:

= Fair valuc hedges when hedging the exp to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liabilily or an unrecognised firm commitment

= Cash flow hedges when hrdgmg the exposure 1o vambnluy in cash flows that is either attributable 10 & particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrccognised firm commitment

= Hedges of a net investment in a forcign operation .

At the inception of a hedge relationship, The Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which it wishies to apply hedge ing and the risk Jid objective and,
siralegy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged and haw The Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the
hedge effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets
all of the following cffcctiveness requirements:

= There is “an ccanomic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

= The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship.

= The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that The Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that The
Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Hedges that meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Cash flow hedges

The Group designates certain foreign exchange forward and cash flow hedges with an intention to hedge its existing lisbilitics and highly probable transaction in foreign currency. When a derivative
is designated as a cash flow hedge instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow
hedge reserve. Any incffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised i diately in the S of Profit and Loss. If the hedging instrument no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exereised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging,|
instrament recognised in cash flow hedge reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedge reserve until the forecasted L ion occurs. The lative gain or loss
previously recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve is transferred to the net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the related forecasted transaction. If the forecasted
transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss,
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Fair value measurement

*Fair value’ is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market particip at the nent date in the principle or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which The Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
meastred or disclosed in the Consolidated Financial S are categorised within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

B Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Jiabilities

B> Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assels and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on @ recurring basis, The Group determiines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
calegorisation. (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as o whole) al the end of cach reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of threc months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposc of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows , cash and cash cquivalents cansist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, ss they are considered an integral part of The
Group's cash management,

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency:

Ttems included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of The Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency).
The financial statements arc presented in Indian rapee (TNR), which is functional and presentation currency of The Group.

ii) Transactions and balances:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the tra ions. Forcign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setilement of|
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Group Companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabililies of foreign operations are translated into * at the rate of exchatige prevailing at the reporting date and their profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

For practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate to translute income and expense items, if the average rte approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, The exchange
differences arising on translation for conselidation are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT). On disposal of a forcign aperation, the component of OCI relating (o that particulnr
foreign operation is recognised in the stat of profit and loss.

Any goodwill arising in the acquisition/ business combination of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics arising on the acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exclangs at the reporting date.

Any goodwill or fair value adj arising in busi combinations/ acquisitions, which occurred before the date of transition to Tnd AS ( April I 2018), are treated as assets and liabilities of
the entity rather than as assets and linbilities of the forcign operation. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are non-moenetary items already expressed in the fimctional curreney of the Parent and no
further translation differcuces occur.

Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any forcign operation excludes translation differences that arose before the date of transition but includes only translation differences arising afler the
transition dute.

Employee Benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefils that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related)
service are recognised in respect of employce's services up 1o the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expecied to be paid when the liabilities are seitled. The liabilities are|
preseuted as current financial liabilitics in the balance sheet.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employec benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilitics for leave balance are not expected to be setiled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in whicls the employees render the related service. They are therefore mensured as
the present value of expected future payments 1o be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are
discounted using the market yields on govemment bonds at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of]|
experience adjustments and changes in actunrial assumptions are recognised in Statement of Profit aud Loss.

The abligations are presented as current liabilitics in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right 1o defer settlement for at Jeast twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expecled to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) defined benefit plans - gratuity, and
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations
The liabilily or assct recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan asscts. The defined benefit obligation is calculated lly by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government!
bonds that have term approximating the term of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets.

Remeasurement gains and losscs arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the balance sheet. Such accumulated re-measurement balances are never reclassified into the i

of Profit and Loss subsequently.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit and loss as past service costs.
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Material accounting policies -continued

Employee Benefits - continued

Defined contribution plan

Retitement benefit in the form of provident fund scheme, Social security, National Insurance, Superannvation, Medicarc schemes are the defined contribution plans. The Group has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable. The Group recognizes contribution payable to these schemes as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

Employee share based payments
Certain employees of The Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments,

Equity-settled transactions:
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is wade using a black Scholes model except for the optian on date of modification of plan from cash
setiled to equity setled transaction (refer modification of plan).

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding inerease in employces stock oplion reserves in equily, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equily-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and The Group’s best estimale of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the Statement of Profit and Loss for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense grised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in cmplayee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when deternining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed ns part of]
The Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions atiached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered 1o be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include » market or non-vesting
condition, the ransactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condifion is satisficd, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted eamings per share,

Taxation
Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised dircetly in the other comprehensive
income.

Current income tax

Current inconic tax assets and Jiabilitics are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from ar paid 1o the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are|
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where The Group operates and geaerates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised oulside profit and loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income (OCI) or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

In the situations where Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where they of no deferred
tax (assct or liability) is recognised in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned entity’s gross total income is subject to the deduction
during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse afier the tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the temporary differences originate.
However, The Group restricts secognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
tealized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the tewporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Current tux assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle the asset and Use liability on a et
basis.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax linbilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initiad recognition of goodwill or an usset or linbility in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
agither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with i ents in subsidiaries, iates and i in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresceable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

= When the deferred tax assel relating to the dedugtibl ry difTerence arises from the initial recognition of an asset o liability in a trapsaction that is nol a business combinntion and, at the

time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarics, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it s
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresecable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences ean be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient laxable profit will be available to allow all ar part

of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it bas become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability is scitled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation (o the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
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2 Material ing policies - inued
(m) Taxation - continued

(m)

(v)

)

=1
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(r]

-

(s)

Deferred tax - continued

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteda for separate recognition at that date, are recognisced subsequently if new information about facts and
circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acqmsmm if Lhcy resull from new information obtained about facts
and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carying amount of goodwill is $ Z€10, any t ing deferred tax b are gnised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle
lained for bargaiu purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recoguised in S ofI‘mﬁl and Loss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if 1t has a legally enforceable right Lo set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tox linbilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on ¢ither the same taxable cntity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and|
assets on a nel basis, or to realise the assets and seitle the liabilities simultancously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required fo setile the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific tw the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of The Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses it in Wic Consolidaled Financial Statements, unless tie passibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benelfits is remote.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the interal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The Group has identified fwo reportable segment based
on the dominant source, nature of risks and return and the internal organisation and 2 v and for which discrete financial information is available. The Executive M

Committee monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment,

Earnings/(Loss) per share

Basic camings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of The Group (afier deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus clement in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split
{consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of cquity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted camings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity sharcholders of The Group and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all difutive potential cquity shares. The weighted average number of shares takes inta account the weighted avernge effect of changes in CCPS during|
the year.

Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily converlible instrument are included in the calculation of basic camnings per share from the date the coniract is entered info.

Ministry of Corporate Afairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments Lo the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the
year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not nofified any new standards or amendmients to the existing standards applicable to The Group.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) had issued the Companics (Indian Acc ing Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2023 on 31st March, 2023 amending the following Ind AS, which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 ;

- Ind AS 1, 'Presentation of Financial S * - This { quires companics to dis¢lose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Consequenily,
The Group has disclosed material g policies. There is no impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

- Ind AS 12 *Income Taxes” - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offselting temporary
differences. The amendments ¢larify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases. The Group previously recagnised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. Pursuant (o
the aforementioned amendment, The Group has grossed-up the deferred tax assets and deferred Lax liabilities recognised in relation to leases w.e.f. Ist April, 2022 However, there is no impact on
the net deferred tax liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

fol Qfaf, {

Critical estimates and judgements
The preparation of the Consolidated Fii requires I to make judg estimates and assumptions that affect the reported of T assets and
liabilitics, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in oulcomes l!ul require a malerial

adjustment (o the carrying amount of assct or liability affected in future periods. The areas involving significant estimates or critical judgements are:

Significant judegements and estimates

(a) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefit and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual develepments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate and future salary increases. Due to complexities
involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensilive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameler most subject to change is the discount rate. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table in India. The mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response o
demographic changes. Further salary i and grawity i are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about the gratuity obligations are given in Note 34,
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Notes to the C lidated Fi ial St. for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2 Material in policics - continued

(s) Critical esti and judg - continued
Significant judep s and esti - inued

{b) Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-nf-completion method in accounting for ils fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires The Group to estimate the cfTorts or costs
expended to date as a propartion of the total efforts or costs to be expended. Efforts ar costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship
between inpul and productivity.

Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.

(¢) Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and wl there is an indication that the recc ble amount of a cash gencrating unit (CGUs) is less than ils carrying amount. For the
impairment test, goodwill is allocated to the CGU or groups of CGUs which benefit from the synergics of the acquisition and which represent the lowest fevel at which goodwill is manitored for
intemal management purposes.The recoverable amount of CGUs is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. Key assumptions in the cash flow projections are
prepared based on current economic conditions and comprises estimated long term growth rates, weighted sverage cost of capital and estimated operating margins, Refer note 4.

() Deferred taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all the deductible temporary differences, however the same is restricted to the
extent of the deferred tax liabilities unless it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the deduetible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised. Refer note 6.

(This space is intentionaily left blank)
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Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equip t

Plant & Machines
Particulars Computers Faxalture and Motor Vehicles Office (Other Than 1 Total
fixtures equipment Computers)
Gross block
Balance as at 1 April 2023 = - - - - -
Add: Additions pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - refer note 40 812 4 132 116 318 1,382
Additions during the year 9 20 - 9 13 133
Disposals/adjustments during the year -1 - -92 -2 -302 =397
Balance as at 31 March 2024 902 24 40 123 29 L118
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2023 - - - - - -
Add: Additions p 1o Scheme of Arrange - refer note 40 454 2 BG 72 48 662
Dcpreciation cxpensc for the year 192 2 it} 16 48 272
Deductions / Adjustments [or the year -1 - -§3 -1 -87 -173
Balance as at 31 March 2024 645 4 17 B6 9 761
Net Block
Balance as at 1 April 2023 - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 257 0 23 37 20 357
Gross block
Balance as at 01 April 2024 902 24 40 123 29 1,118
Additions during the year 221 - - 20 1] 241
Disposals/adjustments during the year -136 - - 3 - -139
Reclassifications during the year 29 - = - .29 =
Balanee as at 31 March 2025 1,016 24 40 140 0 1,220
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2024 645 4 17 86 9 761
Depreciation expense for the year 198 2 5 15 1 vl |
Deductions / Adjustments [or the year -133 - - -2 - -135
Reclassifications during the year 10 - - - -10 &
Balance as at 31 March 2025 720 6 22 99 - 847
Net Block
Balance as at 31 March 2024 257 b)) 23 37 19 357
Balance as at 31 March 2025 296 18 18 41 0 373

(i) Charge is created on the Property, plant and equipment for Cash Credit Facility (refer note 33).

(ii) All property, plant and cquipment are owned by the Campany unless otherwise stated.

(iii) There are no proceeding initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thercunder.
(iv) The assets and liabilities of the Demerged Company relating lo the software development and services business undertaking transferred to the Company (i.e the Resulting Company) as per Scheme
of Arrangement- refer note 40.

4. Intangible assels

Particulars Licenses Goodwill Total
Grass block
Balance as at 1 April 2023 = w =
Add: Additions pursuant to Scheme of
Armangentent - refer note 40 1,114 87 1,201
Additions during the year - - -
Disposals/adjusiments during the year -825 - -825
Balance as at 31 March 2024 289 B7 376
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2023 - - -
Add: Additions pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - refer notc 40 229 - 229
Amortisation expense for the year (Ref Note 27) 9o - 91
Deductions / Adjustinents for the year -19% - -198
Balance as at 31 March 2024 122 - 122
Net Black
Balance as at 1 April 2023 = 5 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 167 87 254
Gross block
Balance as at 01 April 2024 289 87 3%
Additions durmg the ycar - - -
Disposal</adjustments during the year 7 - 7
Balance as at 31 March 2025 296 87 383
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2024 122 - 122
Amortisation expense for the
year (Ref Nole 27) 30 - 10
Deductions /' Adjustments for the year 2 2
Balance as at 31 March 2025 154 = 154
Net Block
Balance as at 31 March 2024 167 87 254
Bal as at 31 March 2025 142 B7 229

(i) No charge created on the Intangible asscls.
(ii) All Intangible Asscts are owned by the Company unless atherwise stated.
(iii) There are no proceeding initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) und rules made thereunder.
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Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5. Right-of-use assets
Particulars Buildings Vehicles Amount

Gross carrying value
Balance as at 1 April 2023 - - -
Add: Additions pursuant to Scheme of Anangement - refer note 40 648 59 707
Additions 40 - 40
Deletions - - -
De-recognilion = s -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 688 59 747
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 01 April 2023 - - -
Amortisation for the year 204 14 218
Deletions = - =
De-recoguition = - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 204 14 218
Net earrying value as at 1 April 2023 - - -
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 484 46 529
Gross carrying value
Balance as at 01 April 2024 688 59 747
Additions 135 36 170
Deletions -147 -23 -171
De-recognition - - -
Adjusiments for the year 12 - 12
Balance as at 31 March 2025 087 72 759
Acc lated amorti
Balance as at 01 April 2024 204 14 218
Amortisation for the year 233 17 250
Deletions -56 -11 -67
De-recognition - - -
Adjustments for the year -7 - -7
Balance as at 31 March 2025 374 20 394
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 484 46 529
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2025 313 52 365
The average lease period of the leased assets is 4 years (March 31, 2024:4 years)
The Company recognized the following income and expense in the statement of profit and loss pertaining to leased assets:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025  As at 31 March 2024
Interest expense on lease liabilities - refer note 26 47 59
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets - refer note above 250 218
Rent expense pertaining (o short- term leases - refer note 28 5 27
Total 302 304
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

6. Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset (net)

Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and when they relate to income taxes levied by he same taxation authority and the Company

intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilitics on a net basis. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax bal (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:
Particulars Asat Asat A at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 01 April 2023
Deferred tax asset 621 603 2
Deferred tax liability -1 -1 -
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) - net 620 602 2
Siymificant compenents and movement in deferred fax assets aud liabilities during the year ended:
Recognised in Rezogntsed In
Particulars As at profit or loss Yiher Ayat
01 April 2024 & comprehensive | 31 March 2025
[charge/(credit)] -
income
Property, plant and equipment 67 -1 - 65
Provision for gratuity and Compensated Absences 281 49 2 332
ROU Assets and lease liability -2 6 - 4
Provision for others 202 -36 - 167
Loss allowance on trade receivables 54 -2 - 52
Derivative assels - - -0 -0
Deffered tax asset/(liabilities)-Net 602 16 2 620
Significant components and movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2024:
Additions Recognised in Recognised in
Pagieilin As at pursuant to profit or foss Other Asat
01 April 2023 Scheme of A comprehensive | 31 March 2024
Arrangement [charge/(credit)] income
Property, plant and equipment - 0 67 - 67
Provision for gratuity and Compensated Absences - 241 48 -7 281
RO Asscts and lease liability - - -2 < 2
Provision for others 0 - 194 - 194
Loss allowance on trade receivables - - - 54 54
Carried Forward Business Losses 2 - -2 - -
Provision For Diminution in the value of Long Term Investments - 8 - 8
Deffered tax asset/(liabilitics)-Net 2 249 304 47 602
7. Trade reccivables
Carried at amortised Cost
As at As at As at
Preticitucs 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 01 April 2023
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
From Related Parties - -0 -
Fram others 6,749 6,932 -
Trade receivables having significant increase in credit risk = - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired - - -
6,749 6,932 -
Unsecured, significant increase in credit risk - - E
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 330 307 -
330 307 -
Total 6.419 6,625 -

(i) No trade or ather receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 32
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As at 31 March 2025
Particulars

Undisputed Trade Receivables considercd good
Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit imapaired
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables whichhave significant
increasc in credit sk

Less: Impairment allowance
Total

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

Undisputed Trade Receivables considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful
Undispuled Trade Receivables - credit imapaired
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables which have significant
increase in credit risk

Less: Impairment allowance
Total

As at 01 April 2023
Particulars

Undisputed Trade Receivables considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit imapaired
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

Less: Impairment allowance
Total

8. Cash and cash equivalenis

Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025

Outstanding for following period from duc date of payment

Current but not
due

Less than 6
months

Gmonths-1 years

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

4,482

1,870

-17

261

-148

-113

15

6,749

-330

1,853

113

6419

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

Current but not
due

Less than 6
months

6months-1 years

1-2 years

2.3 years

More than 3
years

Total

5,502

988

54

118

-118

167

-167

13

6,932

-307

6.625

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

Current but not
duc

Less than 6
months

6months-1 years

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Asat
01 April 2023

Cash In hand
Balances with banks:
In current accounts

Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - refer note below

0

3,252
950

a

1,360
975

Tatal

4,202

2,335

respective short-term deposit rates.

Note: (i) Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, dep

n

L on the 1mx

cash requirements of the Company , and eam interest at the

(ii) Pursuant to the demerger order dated 10 August 2023, onc bank account aggregating to Rs 86 lakhs was held in the name of the demerged company (erstwhile company) .
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ial Stat ts as at 31 March 2025

9. Loans
Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Particulars Asat As at As at As at Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 01 April 2023 01 April 2023
(Unsecured and considered good )
Loans and advances * - 350 - - = =
Total - 350 - - - -

10. Other financial assets

* Unsecured Loan given ta Holding Company " Happiest Minds Technologies Limited" at rate of interest of 7.9% per annum and loan shall be repayable on demand.

Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Particulars As at Asat As at Asat Asat As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2024 01 April 2023 01 April 2023
(Unsecured and considered good )
Unbilled Receivables - 3,601 - 2,137 - -
Security deposit 103 - 87 7 - =
Fixed deposits maturity more than 12 months * 22 - 9 - - -
Interest acerued but not due on fixed deposits Z 1 1 1 = -
Interest accrued on loan given to Related Party - 39 = = = =
Derivative Assels - 23 - = = =
Others# - - - 25 - =
Total 127 3,664 97 2,170 - =

# Receivables for sale of assets for Rs 25 lakhs.

11. Current tax liability (Net)

* Fixed deposits of INR 22 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs 9 lakhs) are marked as lien with Government Authorities. Also, Pursuant to the dewmerger order dated 10 August 2023, three Fixed
deposits aggregating to Rs 15 lakhs which were held in the name of the demerged company (erstwhile company) .

Particulars As at 31 March Asat Asat 01 April
2025 31 March 2024 2023
TDS receivable 1,042 846 -
Advance tax 920 28 -
Provision for income tax -2,189 -881 -
Current tax asset/(liability)Net -227 -7 -
12. Other assets
Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 01 April 2023 01 April 2023
(Unsecnred and considered good )
Prepaid expenses 14 272 89 114 - =
Balances with government authorities* 86 14 8 40 - -
Advances to suppliers - 30 - 6 - -
CSR - refer note below and note 36# 1
Total 100 317 167 160 - -

*Balances with government authoritics-Other Non-Current Assets includes TDS receivables for the FY 13-14, FY 15-16, FY 18-19 and FY 19-20.
#Excess spent for CSR expenditure of | lakh has carry forwarded (o the next year.
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13. Equity share capital

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 Asat 1 April 2023
{i) Authorised shares Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Exquity shares
Equity shares of Rs. | each 3.50,00,000 350|  3,50,00,000 350 3,50,00,000 350
Preference shares of ¥122/- cach 10,000 12 10,000 12 10,000 12
Tatal Authorised shares 3,50,10,000 362 3.50,10,000 362 3,50,10,000 362
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 Asat 1 April 2023
(ii) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of Rs. | each 3.24,11,266 324 3.24,11,166 324 1,00.000 1
Total 3,24,11,266 324 3,24,11.166 324 1,00,000 1

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:

Equity shares: The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a face value of 2 1 per share. Bach Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held, The dividend proposed by the;
Board of Directors is subject (o the approval of the Sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the cvent of liquidation, the equity}
Sharehalders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company afler distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their sharcholding.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the Sharcholders, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently.

Notes
(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 Asat 1 April 2023
Equity shares
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of Rs.10 cach
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 3,24,11,166 324 1,00,000 1 1,00,000 1.00
Add: Shares Issued pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - - 3,23,25,246 323 - -
Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stock options - - 85,920 1 - -
Less: Cancellation of Share Capital pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - - -1,00,000 -1 - -
Add: Shares issucd on conversion of preference shares 100 0 = o ” &
O ding at the cnd of the year 3.24,11,266 324 3,241,166 324 1,00.000 1
(b) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent as at (he end of the year:
As ut 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at I April 2023
Figures as at Figures as at Figures as at
the end of the end of the end of
Name of the Sharcholder current Sharcholding current Shareholding carrent Sharcholding
reporting reporting reporting
period period period
Number o N er of umber o
Shares ' G h;]l.ln:m * Nslmi ' %
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited# 3,24,11,166 100.00 - - - -
Anil Baid* - - 2,12,62,835 65.60 - =
Manish Shanma® - - 63,84,562 20.32 = =
Sameer Jain* - - 2222307 6.86 - -
Tushar Bhaurao Bhatkar® - - 17,712.307 547 - =
PureSoflware Private Limited - - - = 1,00,000 100

# On 22 May 2024, Happicst Minds Technologics Limited acquired 100% shares of the PurcSoftware Technologics Private Limited and PureSoftware Technologics Private Limited
beeame a wholly-owned subsidiary of Happicst Minds Technologics Limited.
* Sharcholders till 21 May 2024

14. Instroments entirely cquity in nature

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 10 0 - - - -
Add: Shares Issued pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - refer note 40 - - 10 0 - -
Less: Conversion of Convertinble Prefereuce shares to Equity Shares -10 -0 = s = =
Total - - 10 0 - -

Tostruments entirely equity in nature i

0.01% Non-Cunmlative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (NCCPS):

Each NCCPS will be converted into 100 equity shares at the option of the Issucr anytime during the Tenure or will be converted anytime during the Tenure . The tenure of the NCCPS|
shall be 20 (Twenty) years. Once the NCCPS are converted into Equity Shares, then such Equity Shares shall, subject ta the terms hercin, rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares|
of the Company. Holder of cach NCCPS shall be entitled to non-cunmlative preferential dividend at the rate of 0.01% (Zero point Zero One Percent) per annum on the face value of the|
NCCPS. NCCPS shall have no voting rights until converted into Equity Shares.

In the event of liguidation or winding-up of the Company, until and unless converted into Equity Shares, cach NCCPS shall be ranked lower than creditors but higher than Equity
Shareholders and shall have priority of payment of capital over the Equity Sharcholders.
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15. Other equity

As at As a

Patyiclacs m::::‘-;:zs 31 March 2024 | 01 April ‘2013
Reserves & Surplus

(i) Securities premium 60 60

(ii) Retained Eamings 687 3,064 -5
(iii) Employee Stock Options Outstanding Accouat (ESOP Reserve) ) - -
(iv) General Reserve 725 725 -
(v) Capital Reserve 2,344 2,344 -
(vi) FCTR 18 -59 -
(vi) Hedge Reserve 17 - -
‘Total 3,851 6,134 -5

$ a £

Tarticolary Mﬁ:l;,]zs 31 M:r\:lltlﬂz-t o1 A::ir;ou
(i) Securities premium account

Opening balance 60 - =
Add : Additions during the year . 60 =
Add : Additions during the year on account of conversion of preference shares 0 = 2
Closing balance G0 60 -
(i) Retained Earnings:

a) Deficit in the statement of profit and loss

As al the commencement of the year . 3,043 -5 -5
Add: Additions pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - 1,527 -
Add: Adjustment to Retained earnings on Lrapsition to Ind AS 18 0 -
Less: Issuz of OCRPS 4,716 - -
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year 5,865 1,046 -
Less: Issue of Dividend -3,500 - -
Add: Adjustment 10 FCTR - 475 -
Closing balance 710 3,043 -5
b) Other comprehiensive income

As at the commencement of the year a1 & -
Add: Additions during the year - 21 -
Less: Reclassified to profit or loss - - <
Closing Balance -23 21 -
Total 687 3.064 -5
(iv) General Reserve®

Opening Balance 725 - =
Add : Other adjustments - 725 =
Less : Utilisations <
Closing Balance 725 725 N
{v) Capital Reserve

Opening Balance : 2344 . S
Add : Additions pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - refer note 40 = 2,344 =
Add: Reduction of Share Capila) pursuant (o Scheme of Armangement - 1 .
Add: Loss on elimination of I T 1o Scheme of Ar = -1 =
Less : Utilisations = - =
Closing Balance 2,344 2344 -
(vi) FCTR

Opening Balance -59 - -
Add: Additiops pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - refer note 40 3 - 384 -
Add: Reclassified to Retnined Eamings - 475

Net movement on effective portion of cash flow hedges 76 32 -
Closing Balance 18 -59 -
(vii) Hedge Reserve

Opening Balance & - =

Net movement on effective portion of cash flow hedges 17 - -
Closing Balance 17 - &
Total reserves and surplus 3,851 6,134 -5
Nature and purpose of each reserve
(D)Securities premium reserve - Securitics premium reserve is used to record the premium on issuc of sharcs. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Comp
Act 2013.
(ii) Retained Earnings - Retaincd Eamings is a free reserve and is available for distributian as dividend, issne of bamis sharcs, buyback of the company's securities. It was created by
transfer of amounts aut of distributable profits, from time to time.
(ifi) Capital reserve arose an account of scheme of arrangement - refer note 40
(iv). Forcign currency reserve - Excl differences arising on translation of the forcign operations are recognised in other 1 income as described in

ing policy and ac lated in a reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to statement of profit and loss when the net investment is disposed-off.

* General reserve includes an amount of Rs. 719 kkhs transferred from ESOP reserve on cancellation of ESOY Scheme on 31 March 2024 - refer note 40
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Financial Liabilities

16. Borrowings

Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Particulars Asat Asat Asat Asat As at As al
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2024 | 01 April 2023 01 April 2023

Unsecured
OCRPS
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares® 6272 - - - - -
Loan #* & = - 2 - 5

6,272 - - - - 5
Total 6,272 - - - = 5

financial liahilitv measured al fair value as on the Balance Sheet date- refer note 32.
*# Interest free unsecured Loan

17. Lease liability

*PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited and PurcSoftware Ple Lid issued 10,000 (Face Value: Rs. 122) and 13,000 OCRPS respectively pursuant to agreements dated 28 May 2024, Each
OCRPS may be redeemed at the option of the Company on or after 30 June 2026, but prior to 10 years from the date of issuance. OCRPS will not carry any dividend rights and will not have any
rights to participate in dividends declared by the Company. Based on the provisions of the agreement which involve aption to convert, redeem, put/eall these instruments have been classified as a

Nan-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Particulars As at Asal Asat As at Asat As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2024 | 01 April 2023 01 April 2023
Lcase liability 108 276 331 210 - -
Total 108 276 331 210 - -
(1) Movement in lease liabilities for year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
« Asat Asat
Facticutirs 31 March 2025 | 31 Mareh 2024
Balance at beginning of the year 541 -
Additions pursuant to scheme of arrangement - refer note 40 - 681
Additions 163 39
Finance cost incurred during the peried - refer note 26 47 59
Disposal 97 -
Payment of lease linbilities -280 =241
Exchange difference 5 3
Balance at the end of the year 384 541
(ii) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
Asat As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Less than one year 276 210
One to five years 108 351
More ihan five years = -
384 541

non-cash addition to lease liabilitics of INR 168 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 - INR 39 lakhs).

(iii) The Group had total cash outflow of INR 280 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 - INR 241 lakhs) for leases recognized in balance sheet. The Group has made a
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18. Trade payables
As at 31 March Asat D1 April
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 2024 2023
Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises and 39 54 -
(ii) Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than Micro Enterprises aud Small Enterprises 1,353 1,570 1
Total 1,392 1,624 1
As at 31 March 2025
Current but not | Less than L year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Particulars diie Total
MSME 39 0 - - - 39
Others 161 73 L - - 235
Disputed dues - MSME - E z = - .
Disputed ducs - Others - - - = & -
Provision for expenses - - - - - 1,118
Total 200 3 1 - - 1,392
As at 31 March 2024
Current but not
Particulars due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME 54 . = = - 54
Others 282 342 - - = 624
Disputed dues - MSME - - g - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Provision [or cxpenses - - - - - 946
Total 336 342 - - - 1,624
As ot 01 April 2023
Particulars C"“‘:‘::"t not Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME - 2= S - -
Others - 1 - - - i
Disputed ducs - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed ducs - Others - - - - - -
Provision for expenses - e % = - -
Total - 1 - - - 1
19. Other financial liabilities
Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Particulars Asat 31 March | Asat31 March Asat Asal Asat Asat
2025 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 01 April 2023 01 April 2023
Salary payables - 169 - 1,785 - -
Others* - 148 - - -
Total - 317 - 1,785 - -
* Payable to Related Pasty for Rs 145 Jakhs for reimburscment of expenses and Rs 3 lakhs pertains to miscellancous deduction.
20. Provisions
Non-current Current Non-current Current Nen-current Current
Particulars As at 31 March | Asat 31 March Asat As at As at As at 01 April
2025 2025 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2024 01 April 2023 2023
Provision for:
CSR - refer note 36 - - = 28 = =
Gratuity - refer note 31 777 95 579 62 - -
Compensated Absences 340 185 254 a7 - -
Perf bonus - 1,120 - 517 - -
Total 1,117 1,400 833 8§78 - -
21. Other hinbilities
Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Particulars Asat 31 March | Asat31 March Asat As at As at As at
2025 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 01 April 2023 01 April 2023
Statutory ducs payables - 1,181 - 9266 - -
Other liability . - - . z |
Total 1,181 - 966 - 1
22, Contract Liability
Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Particulars As at 31 March | Asat 31 March Asat As at Asat Asat
2025 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 01 April 2023 01 April 2023
Unearned revenue - 301 - 205 - -
Total - 301 - 205 - -
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23. Revenue from operations

Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025

Particulars For the year ended For the Year Ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024
Sale of Services 40,043 35,017
Tatal 40,043 35,017
Disaggregated revenue information
For the year ended March 31, 2025
Segment
I'T Busi Services Products and Platforms Total
Revenue from contract with customers 33,581 6,462 40,043
Total Revenue from contract with customers 33,581 6,462 40,043
India 6,761 397 7.158
Qutside India 26,820 6,065 32,885
Total Revenue from contract with customers 33,581 6,462 40,043
‘Timing of revenue recognition
Licensces transferred at a point in time - 1,770 1,770
Fixed price project - Services transferred over time 2,360 1,601 3,961
Time and material - Services transferred over time 31,221 3,091 34,312
Total Revenue from contract with customers 33,581 6,462 40,043
For thie year ended March 31, 2024
Scgment
IT Business Services Products and Platforms Total
Revenue from contract witl: customers 30,747 4,367 35,114
‘Total Revenue from contract with customers 30,747 4,367 35,114
India 5316 66 5,382
Outside India 25431 4,301 29,732
Total Revenue [rom contract with customers 30,747 4367 35114
Timing of revenue recognition
Licenses transferred at a point in time - 1,483 1,483
Fixed price project - Services transferred over time 2,508 2,884 5392
Time and material - Services transferred over time 28,239 - 28,239
Total Revenue from coniract with customers 30,747 4,367 35,114
24, Other income
Particula For the year ended For the Year Ended 31

mrticalacy 31 March 2025 March 2024
Bad debts written back - 87
Exchange pain /(loss) -189 -144
Interest income - others 0 o
Interest income 229 i
Interest on Income Tax Refund = 0
Premium on forward contract - 9
Profit on sale of fixed asset 5 0
Interest income on unwinding security deposit 17 7
Premnium on Forward Conlract | -
Miscellaneous income 3 7
'Total 71 =29
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25, Employee benefil expensc

Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025

Particulars

For the year ended

For the Year Ended 31 March

31 March 2025 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 24,939 23,290
Employee stock compensation expense - refer note 39 - 655
Graltuity expense - refer note 31 264 226
Conltribution to provident and other funds 671 20
Leave encashment 302 342
Staff welfare expenses 287 228
Total 26,463 25,461
26. Fimance cosls
Particulars For the year ended For the Year Ended 31 March
31 March 2025 2024
Interest expenses on Lease liability - refer note 17 47 59
Interest expenses on Bank 0D - 73
Unwinding interest on OCRPS 311 -
I Expense-Olhers 0 -
Total 358 132
27. Depreciation and amortisation expense
For the year ended For the Year Ended 31 March
Particulars 31 March 2025 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 221 271
Amortisation on ROU asset - refer note 5 260 218
Amortisation on Intangible asscts - refer note 4 30 91
Total 511 580
28. Other Expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the Year Ended 31 March
31 March 2025 2024
Cosl of services 2,578 2,760
Business relation & Promotion expenses 117 171
Auditor’s remuneration - refer below note 53 16
Provision for doubtful debts 51 -
Badl debls written off 14 -
Bank charges 51 33
Communication cxpense 84 49
CSR expenses - refer note 36 52 39
Electricity expense 24 29
Insurance cxpenses 35 107
Legal and professional fees* 483 1,271
License reseller commission 158 107
Loss on Discarded Assets held for Sale - 816
Membership and subscription charges 3 12
Miscellaneous expenses(net) 4 14
Office expenses 74 73
Postage and Courier Expenses 17 12
Printing and stationery expense 2 3
Rate & taxes 121 257
Recruitment and training expenses 180 3
Rent expenses 5 27
Repairs and maintenance on Hired Office Premises - 11
Repairs and maintenance on others 9 12
Repairs and maintenance on PM 9 11
Software subscription charges 252 353
Travel & lodging expenses 477 643
Total 4,853 7,157
As a auditor:
Statutory audit fees 27 8
Group audit fees 26 8
*Reimbursement of expenses 2 1
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Notes te the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025

29. Tax Expense
i) Amount Recopnised in statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

Current tax

Tax adjustment of carlier years

Deferred tax

Attributable to origination and reversal of temporary differcnces
Tax cxpense for the year

For the year ended For the Year Ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024
2,189 808
-109 74
-16 -360
2,064 612

b) Statement of other comprehensive income

Particulars

For the year ended

For the Year Ended 31

31 March 2025 March 2024
Exchange differences on transiating the fi ial of a foreign operati 76 32
On nct movement on cffective portion of cash flow hedges 17 -
On re-neasurement losses on defined benefit plans -23 21
70 53
¢) Reconciliation of tax expense and tax based on ing profit:
For the year en h
S | Whwhes
Profit before income tax expense 7,929 1,658
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2025 : 25,17%) 1,996 417
Tax effect of:
Ulilisation of previous year losses for which no deferred tax was created -15 -80
Deferred tax recognised during the year net of reversal of temporary difference -10 182
Adjustment of tax relating to carlier periods ~
Expenses not deductible 85 3
Difference in tax rates 19 83
Others -11 7
Income tax expense 2,064 612
30. Earnings per share (EPS)
Pacticubirs For the year ended For the Year Ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024
(a) Basic
Profit afier fax 5,865 1,046
Less: Dividend an Preference shares (including Dividend Distribution Tax) - -
Adjusted Net Profit for the year 5,865 1,046
Weighted Average number of equity shares outstanding 3,24,11,261 3,23,28,542
Basic EPS (%) 18.10 324
(b) Diluted
Adjusied Net Profit for the year 5,865 1,046
Weighted Average number of equily shares outstanding 3,24,11,261 3,23,28,542
Add: Weighted average number of shares on account of canvertible preference shares 49 1,000
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on accouat of ESOP & Share based Liability* - -
Weighted Average number of equity shares oulstanding for diluted EPS 3,24,11,310 3,23,29,542
Diluted EPS () 18.10 324
Face value per share (3) 1.00 1.00

“As at 19 April 2024, the Company has issued "100" equity shares against the "1000" Non Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares.

*During the Financial Year 2023-2024, the Company had issued 0.01% Non Curnulative Compulsary Convertible Preference Shares and no dividend his been provided for in the
current period and the previous periods therefore, the amount of any preference dividends on 0.01% Non Cunnilative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares has nol been

deducted from preference shares.
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31 Employee benefits plan
(i) Defined contribution plans - Provident Fund and other funds
The Group makes contributions for qualifying employees to Provident Fund and other defined contribution plans. During the year, the Group recopnised INR 671 lakhs
(March 31, 2024 : INR 720 lakhs ) towards defined contribution plans.

(i) Defined benefit plans (funded):

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of §
years are cligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for
15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and Group is exposed to the following risks:

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yiclds at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit Currently, for the|
plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of i in govemnment securities, and other debt instruments.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the fulure salaries of members. As such, an increase in the
salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Longevity risk Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan dees not have any longevity risk.

Concentration risk Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company.

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current 95 62

Non-current 177 579

872 641

The following table sets out movement in defined benefits liability and the amount recognised in the financial statements:

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the year ended March 31, 2025:

Defined benefit  Fair valoe of plan assets Net amount

obligation (A) (B) (A-B)
As at April 1, 2024 . 641 - 641
Current service cost 219 - 219
Net interest expense 46 - 46
Tatal amount recognised in statement of profit and loss 265 - 265
Benefits paid 65 - -65
Remeasurement
Retumn on plan assets - < S
Actuarial changes arising [rom changes in demographic assumptions 26 - 26
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 33 & 33
Experience adjustments -28 - -28
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 31 - 3
Contributions by employer - - -
As at March 31, 2025 872 - 872

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the year ended March 31, 2024:

Defined benefit  Fair value of plan assets Net amount

obligation (A) (B) (A-B)
As at April 1, 2023 508 - 508
Current service cost 189 - 189
Net inleresl expense 36 - 36
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss 215 - 215
Benefits paid 64 - 64
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets - - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumplions - - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 4 - 4
Experience adjustments -32 - -32
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income -28 - -28

Contributions by cmployer = = _
As at March 31, 2024 641 - 641
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31

Employce benefits plan - continued
The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Insurance fund - -

Total & -

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity henefit obligations for the Group’s plans are shown below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.50% 1.15%
Expected retum on plan assets = 3
Future salary increases 7.00% 7.00%
Employee tumover Upto 2 Year-18% Upto 2 Year-30%
24 Years-18% 24 Years-24%
Above 4 Years-18% Above 4 Years-16%
Mortality Indian Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives Mortality
Mortality 2012-14 (Utban)

2012-14 (Urban)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as shown below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sensitivity Level Defined benefit obligation on increase/decrease in assumplions
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate 1% increase / decrease 824 -924 603 -683
Future salary increase 1% increase / decrease 923 -824 683 603
Attrition rate 50% increase / decrease 792 4974 565 -732

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in
some of the assumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present
value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when caleulating the defined
benefit liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.

The following payments are expected cash flows to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Expected contributions to defined benefits plan for the year ended March 31, 2025 is Nil (March 31, 2024 : Nil). The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan
obligation at the end of the reporting perjod is 4 to 8 years (March 31, 2024: 4 to 8 years). The expected maturity analysis of undiscountcd gratuity is as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within the next 12 months 95 62
Between 2 and § years 508 361
Between 6 and 10 years 392 317

Beyond 10 years 348 351




PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statemenis as at 31 March 2025

(AN amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32

Fair value measurement
i) The carrying value of financial assets by categories is as follows:

Measured at Falr Value Through Other Comprehensive Tneome (EVOCH

Forcipn currency forward contracts
Total financial assets measured at FVOC1

Measured at Falr Value Throogh Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Tatal financial assefs measured at FYTPL

Measured at amortiscd cost

Security deposits

Lozns & Advances

Other financial assets

Trade receivables

Unbilled Receivables s

Bank and bank balance other than cash and cash equivaleats
Cash and cash equivalems

Total financial assets measured at amortlsed cost

Total financial assets
i) The carrying value of financial labilitics by categories Is as follows:
Measured at fair value through other profit or loss (FVTPL)

Optionally Convertible Redecrmable Preference Shares
Total financial liabilities measured at FYTPL

Measured at Tair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)
Foreign currency forward contracts
Total financial liabilities measured at FVOCI

Measured at amortised cost

Leasc liabilitics

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Total Mnaocial labilities

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

19
by

[H

103
350
64
6,419
3,601

4,202

94

6,932
2137

2335

14,739

11,497

14,762

11,497

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

6.272

6,272

384
1,392
317

2,093

8,366
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3z

Fair value measurement - continued

fii) Fair value hicrarchy
The following table provides the fir value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and labilities:

Quoted prices Significant Significant Tatal
In nctive market  observable inputs Unobservable
Inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

March 31, 2025

Finuncinl assets and Habflities measured at fafr values

Measured at fair value throngh other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Foreign currency forward contracts - 3 - 23
Total financlal asset measured at falr value - 23 - 23|
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCT)
Foreign currency forward contracts - - - -
Measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss (FVTPL)
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares - - 6,272 6,272
Total financial liabilitics measured at fair value - - 6,272 6.272|
Quoted prices Significant Significant Total
inactive market  observableinputs  Unobservable
inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
March 31,2024
Financial assets and labilities measured at fair values
Measured at fair value through ather compreliensive income (FVOCI)
Foreign currency forward contracts - - - -
Total financial asset measured at fair value - - - -
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 3 - = -
Measurcd at fair value through statement of profit and loss (FVTPL)
Total financial liabilities measured at fair valoe = - = -
Notes:
The fair value of the financial asseis and liabilitics are measured al the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in x current i ion between willing partics, other than in a foreed or liquidation sale.

a) The Company has valued OCRPS by using the monte carlo simulation approach.

Valuation Inputs and relationship to fair value
Level 3 inputs

Weighted

Sensitivity
range

March 31, 2025
Standard deviation on revenuc and EBIDTA growth 5.00% Tncrease and decrease in standard
. deviation by 1% would decrease and
increase contingent consideration by
INR 112 lakhs and INR 165 lakhs

respectively.
Discount rate 1.07% Inerease and decrease in discount rate
by 1% would decrease and increase
contingent conshleration by INR 48
lakhs and INR 49 lakhs respectively,
b) Reconciliation of OCRPS measured at FYTPL
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance - -
Subscription o OCRPS 1,113 -
Initial recognition of OCRPS liability 4,741 -
Amount recognised in profit and loss
slatement - reier note 26 KH -
Loss/(Gain) an re-measurcment/derccognition - -
Settlement during the year =z -
Foreign currency tmnshition reserve 107 -
As at March 3172025 6,272 -
c) The Group has entered into fareign currency forward cantract to hedge the highly probable forecast tr ions. The derivative financial inst is entered with the financial institutions with investment grade

ratings. Foreign exchange forward contracts arc valued based on valuation models which include usc of market observable inputs. The mark to market valuation is provided by the financial instiwtion as at reporting|
tlate, The valuation of derivative contracts are categorised as Jevel 2 in fair value hierarchy disclosure.

d) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial zssels(current), other financial liability (current), lease liabilities (current) and loans to emplayces|
approximales their faic value lirgely due to short-ierm maturities of these instruments.

€] The fair value of remaining financial instruments are determined on transaction date based on discounted cash flows calculated using lending/ b ing rate. Subsequently, these are carried at amortized cost. The
carrying amoun! of the remaining financial instruments are the reasonable approximation of their fair value,
Tor financial assets carried at fiir value, their carrying amount are equal 1o their fair valuc.

&
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33 Financial risk management
The Group's principal finanicial Habiliti prise ol b ings, Jease obligation, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial Habilities is to finance the Group's ions. The Group™s prineip
financial assets include sccurity deposits, trade and other reccivables and cash and cash equivalents that is derived directly from its operations. The Graup also enters into derivative trunsactions for hedging purpose.

The Group's activilies exposes it 1o market risk, liquidity risk and eredit risk. The Group's risk management is carried out by the management under the policies approved of the Board of Directors that help in
ideatification, measurcment, mitigation and reporting all risks associated with the activities of the Group. These risks are identified on a conlimous basis and assessed for the impact on the financial performance. All
derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate <ills, experience and supervision. It is the Group®s policy that no rading in derivatives for speculative
purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Dircetors reviews and agrees policics for managing cach of these risks, which are sumnarised below,

A) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: futerest rate risk, currency risk and|
equity price risk. Financial instruments uffected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial instnuments.

i. Foreign currency risk

The grovp's operates in various geographies and is exposed to foreign exchange risk on its various currency exposures. The risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to tie group’s operating
aclivities,

The group uscs foreign currency forward contract govemed by its board approved policy to mitigate its foreign cusency sk that are expested 1o occur within the period for fr d sales. The party for
these 5 8¢ lly a reputed scheduled bank. The group reports quarterly to a committee of the board, which monifors forcign exchange risks and policies implemented to manage ils forcign exchange|
CXpOsUrcs.
When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the group negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the hedped exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions, the derivatives|
caver the period of exposure from the point the cash flows of the transactions are forecasted up 1o 1he point of sale that is denominated in the forcign currency.

Hedge cffectiveness is determined at inception and periodic prospeetive cffectivencss testing is done to ensurc the relationship cxist between the hedged items and hedging instruments, including whather the hedging
instruments is expected o offset changes in cash lows of hedge ftems.

a)The Group's exposare 1o uon-derivative financial insteuments in forcign cuirency at the cod of reporting period §

Amoum in Lakhs
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Currency Particulars FC INR FC INR
Financial assels
usn Tradc receivables 19 1,610 16 1331
Other financial assets 8 650 9 710
Bank accounts 15 1,311 0 a3
Other asscts 0 9 - o
Net exposure on forcign currency risk (ssscls) 42 3.580 25 2,064
Financial Hability
Borrawings 73 6,272 - -
Trade payables 2 4 - -
Ohier financial Babilities - - - =
Other liabilitics - = - -
Net exposure on forelgn currency risk (labilities) 73 6,272 - -

Net exposure on loreign currency risk (assets-liabllitics) =31 -2,692 25 2,064
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33 Financial risk management - continued

A) Market risk - continued
i. Forelgn currency risk - confinued

Amount in Lakhs|

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

Currency

Particulars

INR

FC

INR|

SGD

HEKD

IDR

GEBP

The Group enters into derivative financial insttuments such as foreign currency forward contracts (o mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates. Details of the derivative contracts held by the Group are included in

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Qther financial assets

Bank accounts

Other asscts

Net exposure on forefgn currency risk (assets)

Borrowings

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Other liahilitics

Net exposure on foreign currency risk (liabilities)
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i. Foreign currency risk (continucd)

h) The sensilivity of profit or loss to changes in foreign cxchange rates atising mainly from forcign ncy inated (mancial i
Impact on profit before tax
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

USD sensitivity

INIV USD increases by 5% -135 103
INR/ USD decreases by 5% 135 -103
SGD sensltivity

INR/ SGD increases by 5% 126 63
INR/ SGD decreases by 5% -126 -63
HEKD sensitivity

INR/ HKD increases by 3% 12 L
INR/ HKD decreases by 5% -12 -1
IDR sensitivity

TNR/ IDR increases by 5% 3 5
INR/ IDR decreases by 5% -3 -5
GBP sensitivity

INR/ GBP increascs by 5% - -1
INR/ GBP decreases by 5% = 1

* Sensitivity is calculated holding all other variables constant
In management’s opinion, the itivily analysis is p ive of the inherent foreign exclange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect thie exposure during the year.

ii. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Quetuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure (o the risk of changes in market inferest|

rates relates primarily to the Red ble N ible det {NCD)s with floating interest rates'. The Group was not exposed 1o inlerest rate risk as at Macch 31, 2022 since all its financial assets or liabilitics
were either nun-inlerest bearing or are at fixed interest rate and arc carried at amortised cost.
Sensitivity:

The impact of change in interest rate by +/- 50 basis point have an immaterial impact on the profit before tax of the Group. Hence, the sensitivity has not been disclosed.
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33 Financial riskc management - continued
A) Market risk - continued
fil Price risk
The Company is not exposed to Price risk as at March 31, 2025 and as at 31 March 2024.

B) Impact of Hedge activities

(i) The following provides the details of hedging instrument and its impact on balance sheet

March 31, 2025

Notional
Amount Contracted amount  Line item in the
Maturi C F:
ety rrency {Forcign in INR balance sheet Fair value*
Currency)
Cash fow hedge of Foreign currency risk
(for highly probable forccast transactions)
. Other financial
- Foreign currency forward conrracts I 1
ign cy < | year NR/USD 18 1,568 assetsilinbilities) 23
March 31, 2024
Maturity Nutienal
Amount Contracted amount  Lime item in the
Currency (g oreign in INR balanee sheet Falr vame
Currency)
Cash flow hedge of Foreign currency risk
(for highly probable forecast tansactions)
3 > Other financial
- Foreign currency forward contracts - - -
gn ncy fo conl < | year INR/USD assels/(labiliics)
* represents the impact of mark to market value at year end.
(ii) The efect of cash flow hedge in hedge reserve and statement of profit and loss:
Forcign currency
forward contracls Total
Balance ss at April 1, 2023 - -
Hedge gain/(loss) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT) a =
Amount reclassified from OCl 1o statement of profit and loss - -
Income tax effect - -
Balance 0s at March 31, 2024 - -
Hedge gaini(loss) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT) -
Amount reclassified from OCI 1o statement of profit and loss 23 23
Income tax effect -6 -6
Balance as at March 31, 2025 17 17
Amounts reclassitied from the OClis guised in foreign gain or loss in § of Profit and Loss.
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33 Financial risk monagement - continued

C) Credit risk
Credit risk s the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instruments or customer contract leading t a financial loss, The Group is exposed to credit risk from ils operating aclivitics
(primarily trade receivables, unbilled revenue and contract assets) and from its i ing uctivitics and from i ing activities (primarily deposits with banks).

Revenue from one customer comprises around 20% of the total revenue of the Group. The remaining revenue of the Group is spread across wide range of customers. For receivables tumover ralio, refer note 45,

(i} Trade reccivables, unbilled revenue and contruct assets.

Trade reccivables, unbilled revemic and contract assets are typically unsecured and derived from revenue fiom contracts with customers. Customer credit risks is menaged by each business units subject 1o Group's
policy and procedures which involves 1 I itoring the eredit hiness of to which the Group grants credits in the normal course of business. The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for
recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable, Under the simplificd approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetimel
Expecied Credit Losses (ECLs) at each reporting dalc, right from initial recognition. The Group uses a provision matrix to determing impairmen loss aflowance on the portfolio of wade receivables. The provision)
matrix takes into zccount available external and intemnal credil risk factors and the Group's historical experience with enstomers. Ageing of trade receivables and the provision in books for trade receivables:

181-365 & More than 3
Notdus  I-150 days days 1-2 years 2-3 years vears Total

As at March 3§, 2025

Trade receivables 4,482 1,870 261 121 - 15 6,749
Unbilled Revenne - - - - - - 3,601
Allowance for expecied loss -37 -17 -148 -113 - -15 -330
Net Trade recelvables 4,445 1,833 113 B - 0 10,020
As at March 31, 2024

Trade receivables 5592 988 L2 [R5 167 13 6,932
Unbilled Revenue -
Allowance for expected loss - - -9 -118 -167 -13 =307
Net Trade receivables 5,592 988 45 - - - 6,625
Reconciliation of loss allowance - (rade receivables March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance as at April, 1 307 9%
Allowance made during the year (net) - refer note 31 3 209
Utilised/written-ofl during the year - .
Exchange difference - -
Closing balance as at March, 31 330 307
Reconciliation of loss all = unbilled and other fi fal assets March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Opening balance as ut April, 1 & -
Allowance made during the year - refer note 31 30 -
Closing balance as at March, 31 30 -

(i} Other financial assels and cash deposit
Credit risk from balances with the banks, loans, investments in nnnual funds and other financial assets arc managed by the Group based on the Group policy and is managed by the Group's Treasury Team,|
Investment of surplus fund is made only with appraved counterpartics. The Group's maxiinum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of such assets as disclosed in note 36 above,
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3

M4

Financlal risk management - continoed
D) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able 10 meet its preseat and future cash and collateral obligations without ineuming inacceptable losses. The Group's objective it to, at all times maintain optimum|

levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely manitars its position and d source of ing.
The Group has access to (he following undruwn borrowing fucilitics at the end of the reporting period:
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
HDFC Bank
Sceured Cash Credit (Including Bank Guarantee- Rs. 550 Lakhs) 2,000 2,000
2,000 2,000
Tenor (a) Cash Credit- On Demand
{b) Bank Guarantee- Up to 2 Years
{c) WCDL - 120 days
Security () Movable Property, Plant and Equipment

{b) Trade and Other Receivables
(€) Personal Guarantee of Mr. Anil Baid

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial Habilities at the reporting date. The amounts are based on contractual undiscounted payments,

Particalars OnDemand  Less than | year  More than 1 year Total|
As at March 31, 2025
Lease liabilities - 293 174 467
Trade payables - 1,392 = 1,392
Other financial liabilitics - a7 - 317
- 2,002 174 2,176
As at March 31, 2024
Lease liabilities - 269 350 619
Trade payables - 1,624 - 1,624
Qther financial liabilitics - 1,785 - 1,783
- 3,678 350 4,028
Capital management
For the purposc of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible pref shares, ti ium and all other cquity rescrves. The primary abjective of the Group's|

capilal management is fo maintain a strong capilal base to ensure sustained growth in business and to maximize the sharcholders value. The capital management focuses to maintain an optimal structure that balnces
growth and maximizes shareholder value.

The Group its eapital and makes adjust in light of changes in economic canditions and the requi of the financial . To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may|
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital o sharcholders or issuc new shares, The Growp includes within net debt, interest hearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. The Group's|
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital phis net debt is as helow:

The Group do not have any borrowings as at 31 March 2025 and as at 31 March 2024,

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowings (including current maturitics) 6272 =
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 4,202 -2335
Net (cash and cash equivalents)/debt (A) 2,070 <1335
Equity 4,175 6,458
Total equity capital (B) 4,175 6,458
Tatal debt and equily (C }={A)+(B) 6,145 4,123
Gearing ratio (A)(C ) 033 -0.57

No changes were made in the ohjectives, policics or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

During the year the group has not defaulied in any loan cavenants.
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35. Related party relationships and transactions
(A) Related party disclosures
Relationship Name of related party

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) ). Anil Baid, Director (till 28 May,2024)

. Anil Baid (Appointed as Executive Committee member w.c.f 28th May,2024)

. Manish Sharma, Director (appointed w.e.{ 26 July, 2022 till 28 May 2024)

. Manish Sharma (Appointed as Executive Committee member w.c.f 28th May,2024)

. Sameer Jain (Appointed as Executive Committec member w.e.{ 28th May,2024)

6. Surendra Lunia, Director (till 28 May, 2024)

7. Richard Lamar House, Additional Director (appointed w.c.f 27 Nov 2023 till 28 May 2024 )
8. Darshankar Praveen Kumar (appointed w.c.f 28 May 2024)

9. Venkatraman Narayanan (appointed w.e.{ 28 May 2024)

o W

Relatives of KMP 1. Rekha Baid (Spouse of Aail Baid) (till 28 May,2024)
2. Nirmala Baid (Mother of Anil Baid) (till 28 May,2024)
3. Shagun Baid (Daughter of Anil Baid) (till 28 May,2024)

Other related parties
(i) Related to Director 1. NEXG Solutions Pvt Ltd (till 28 May,2024)
2. NEXG Finserv Pvt Ltd (till 28 May,2024)
3. Infotel Business Solutions Ltd (till 28 May,2024)
(ii) Entities under commeon control 1. Solutions Infosystems Pvi. Lud (1ill 28 May,2024)
2. PureSoftware Private Limited (tll 28 May,2024)
Parent Company 1. Happiest Minds Technologies Limited* (w.e.f 22 May 2024)

*On 22 May 2024, Happiest Minds Technologies Limited acquired 100% shares of the PureSofiware Technologies Private Limited and PureSoftware Technologies Private
Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Happiest Minds Technologies Limited.

(B) The following table is the summary of significant transactions with related parties:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Director's Remuneration (Incl. Perquisites)
Anil Baid = 105
Manish Sharma - “

Employec benefit expense

Manish Sharma 304 296
Anil Baid 221 -
Shagun Baid - 17
Others

Manish Sharma (Advance Received Back) - 718
Anil Baid = 2
Richard Lamar House = -

Professional charges
Richard Lamar House ) 5 30

Professional charges - (Management services)

PureSoftware Private Limited 2 48
Rent

Solutions Infosystems Pvt. Ltd 1 1
Nirmala Baid & 4
Rekha Baid - 13
Dividend Paid

Happiest Minds Technologies Limited 3,500 -
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(B) The following table is the summary of significant transactions with related parties: (Continued)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Sale of software service - Domestic
Happiest Minds Technologies Lumited
Infotel Business Solutions Ltd

NEXG Solutions Pvt Ltd

Sale of Assets
NEXG Finserv Pvt Ltd
PureSoftware Private Limited

Interest Income
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited

Advances Given
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited

Purchase of software service - Domestic
Happiest Minds Technologics Limited

Reimbursement of expenses
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited

Dividend Paid
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited

[

43

3,500

91

145

3,500

159
66

23

(C) The balance reccivable from and payable to related parties are as follows:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Receivable from related parties
Trade Receivables
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited

Loans and Advances
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited

Accrued Interest on Loan Given
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited

Other Receivables
NEXG Finserv Pvt Ltd

Payable to related partics
Director's Remuncration
Anil Baid

Employee Benefit Expenses
Manish Sharma

Rent expenses

Solutions Infosysterns Pvt. Lid
Nirmala Baid

Rckha Baid

Other Payables
Shagun Baid

Professional charges - (Management services)
PurcSoftware Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited

Trade Payables
Happiest Minds Technologies Limited

350

39

145

27

26

86
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36 Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') expenditure

Details of CSR expenditure are as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 52 59
(b) Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 52 59
(c) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2025 ; In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i) Construction/ Acquisition of any asset 3 - 3
1i) On purposc other than above 50 - 50
(d) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2024 : In cash Yet to be paid in cash Tatal
i) Construction/ Acquisition of any asset 13 - 13
ii) On purpose other than above 18 - 18
(e) Details related to spent/ unspent oblipations: As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
i) Contribution to Public Trust - -
ii) Contribution te Charitable Trust 53 31
ii) Unspent amount in relation to:
- Ongaing = 28
- Other than - -
53 59
In case of S. 135(6) (Ongoing Project)
Opening balance Amount spent during the year Closing balance
Amount required to B
: b t during the rom t
With Company In S:Jpa::tw‘zSR c speny“r ng Company's From scp:nrta \:CCSR With Company In srpurnl‘cMC:SR unspent
peny bank Alc unspents
- 28 28 - 28 - -
In case of 8. 135(5) (Other than ongoing Project)
Amount deposited in specified fund of Sch. |  Amount required to be spent during the | Amount spent during the Y
Opening balance VI within 6 months year year Closing balance
E - 52 52 0
In case of 8. 135(5) Excess amount spent
R Amount required to be spent during the -
Opening balance year Amount spent during the year Closing balance
52 53 1

Note- Excess spent for CSR expenditure of 1 lakh has carry forwarded to the next year.
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Note 37
Contingent Liabilities In Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts
Income tax matters™
FY 2019-20 114 108
FY 2021-22 222 234
FY 2022-23 30 4
FY 2023-24 469 %
Tax Deducted at Source(TDS) matters*®
FY 2009-10 5 5
Tatal 840 347

* Including Interest to the extent quantifiable by the Assessing Officer (AQ).

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company's management reasonably expects that these legal actions,
when ultimately concluded and determined, will not have a material and adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or financial condition.

Note 38
Ratios Analysis
Ratio Numerator Denominator Current Period | Previous Period | Variance Reason for variance
(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilitics 293 1.99) 47% Increase in Cash and Cash
equivalents
(b) Debi-Equity Ratio Total Debt Sharcholder’s Equity 1.50 - 100%  |Increasc due to issuc of
Optionally Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio  |PAT+Depreciation+ Finance | Interest on Cash Credit 1137 7.39) 56% Increase due to issue of
coststDeferred Tax Expense | Facilities Optionally Convertible
(Income) Redeemable Preference Shares
(d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after taxes- Average Sharcholder's 1.10 032  240%  |Inerease in revenue and Decrease
Preference Dividend (if any) Equity in expenses during the FY 24-25
(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio Not Applicable
(f) Trade receivables Tumover Net Credit Sales Average Trade 6.14 10.57 A2% Collections received during the
Ratio Reccivables FY 24.25
(g) Trade payables Tumover Ratio |Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables 3.22 8.81 -63% Decrease in expenses during the
FY 24-25
(k) Net Capital Tumover Ratio Net Sales Average Working Capital 4.06 6.23 -35%  |Increase in revenue and Decrease
in average working capital during
the FY 24-25
(i) Net Profit Ratio Net Profits after taxes- Net Sales 0.15 0.03 390%  [Increase in revenuc and Decrease
Preference Dividend (if any) in expenses during the FY 24-25
(3) Return on Capital Employed Eaming before Interest and Capital Employed 0.86/ 0.32) 170% Increase in revenue and Decrease
Taxes (Tangible Net Worth + in expenses during the FY 24-25
Debt + DTL)
(k) Return on Investment {MV(T1) - MV(T0) — Sum {MV(TO0) + Sum [W(t) * 60.00 4.54 1223%  |Increase n Interest Income
[col col}
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Note No. 39
Share based payments

ESOP Plan - 2021 ("2021 Plan")

On February 16, 2024, pursuant to approval by the Shareholders in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting, the Company adopted the scheme passed by Demerged Company
(PureSoftware Private Limited) in it's Extra-Ordinary General Mecting held on July 27, 2021, the Board has been authorized to introduce, offer, issue and provide share-based
incentives to eligible employees of the Company under the 2021 Plan. The maximum number of shares under the 2021 Plan shall not exceed 5,00,000 equity shares. The stock
units granted under the 2021 Plan shall vest based on the achievement of defined annual performance parameters as determined by the administrator (Nomination and
Management Remuneration committee). The process for determining the eligibility of the employees will be specified by the Nomination and Management Remuneration
Committee and will be based on designation, period of service, band, performance linked paramcters such as work performance and such other criteria as may be determined by
the aforesaid Committee at its sole discretion, from time to time. These instruments will vest so long as the employee continues to be in the employment of the Company. The
details of vesting arc indicated in the proposed PureSoftware Employee Stock Plan 2021 read with the Emplovee Stock Option Agreement.

Share Based payment Plan- 2021

Company has granted Share Based Payment Option to certain contractors and vendors (herein referred as eligible persons) pursuant to the Executive Stock Appreciation Right,|
Serics 2021 ("the Plan or Scheme”). The grant value is determined as defined in the Scheme. The process for determining the eligibility will be specified by the Nomination and
Management Remuneration Committee and will be based on designation, period of service, band, performance linked parameters such as work performance and such other|
criteria as may be determined by the aforesaid Committee at its sole discretion. {rom time to 1ime. The exercise period commences from the date of vesting of the options.
Under the Scheme, the specified eligible persons are entitled to receive option for redemption value in the form of cash (as defined in the policy document), being the difference
in the share valuation at the date of exercise and the exercise price subject to certain conditions. The Schemes are administered by the Nomination and Remuneration!
Committee under guidance of the Board & Management of Puresoflware Technologies Private Limited.

ESOP Plan - 2022 ("2022 Plan")

On February 16, 2024, pursuant w0 approval by the Sharcholders in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting, the Company adopted the scheme passed by Demerged Company
(PurcSoftware Private Limited) in it's Extra-Ordinary General Mecting held on March 27, 2023, the Board has been authorized to introduce, offer, issue and provide share-
based incentives to eligible employees of the Company under the 2022 Plan. The maximum number of shares under the 2022 Plan shall not exceed 5,00,000 cquity shares. The
stock units granted under the 2021 Plan shall vest based on the achievement of defined annual performance parameters as determined by the administrator (Nomination and
Management Remuneration committee). The process for determining the eligibility of the employees will be specified by the Nomination and Management Remuneration,
Committee and will be based on designation, period of service, band, performance linked parameters such as work performance and such other criteria as may be determined by|
the aforesaid Committee at its sole discretion, from time to time. These instruments will vest so long as the employee continues to be in the employment of the Company. The
details of vesting are indicated in the proposed PurcSoftware Employee Stock Plan 2022 read with the Employce Stock Option Agreement.

ESOP Plan - 2024 ("2024 Plan™)

On February 16, 2024, pursuant to approval by the Shareholders in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting, the Board has been nuthorized to introduce, offer, issuc and provide
sharc-based incentives to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries under the 2024 Plan. The maximum number of shares under the 2024 Plan shall not exceed
5,00,000 equity shares. The stock units granted under the 2024 Plan shall vest based on the achievement of defined annual performance parameters as determined by the
administrator (Nomination and Management Remuneration committee). The process for determining the eligibility of the employees will be specified by the Nomination and|
Management Remuneration Committee and will be based on designation, period of service, band. performance linked parameters such as work performance and such other,
criteria as may be determined by the aforesaid Committee at its sole discretion, from time to time. These instruments will vest so long as the employee continues to be in the
employment of the Company. The details of vesting are indicated in the proposed PureSoftware Employee Stock Plan 2024 read with the Employee Stock Option Agreement.
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Particulars
Figures as at the end of current reporting period  Figures as at the end of previous reporting period

Subsidiary/Step
Subsidiary

Subsidiary/Step

g Holding Subsidiary

Options (No's) Options (No's) Options (No's) Options (No's)

2021 ESOP Plan*
Options Outstanding at the beginning of the Year - - a 5
Additions pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - - 3,80,800 «
Granted during the Year - - 1,54,625 -
Exercised during the Year - - 85,920 =
Lapsed during the Year = - s
Cancelled during the Year (Refer Note 47) - - 4,49,505 E

Options Outstanding at the end of the Year - - - -

2021 Share Based Payment Plan*

Options Outstanding at the beginning of the Year - - @
Additions pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - - 16,400 i
Granted during the Year = = g .
Exercised during (he Year - - - -
Lapsed during the Year - - - .
Cancelled during the Year (Refer Note 47) - - 16,400 2

Options Outstanding at the end of the Year - - & =

2022 ESOP Plan*

Options Outstanding at the beginning of the Year - - - ”
Additions pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - - = =
Granted during the Year - = & 3,64,200
Exercised during the Year - - 5 -
Lapsed during the Year E - - _
Cancelled during the Year (Refer Note 47) - - = 3,64,200

Options Outstanding at the end of the Year - - - =

2024 ESOP Plan

Options Ontstanding at the beginning of the Year - = - -
Additions pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement - - - .
Granted during the Year - - - 3,15,259
Exercised during the Year - - # &
Lapsed during the Year = = = -
Cancelled during the Year (Refer Note 47) = 3 - 3,15,259

Options Qutsianding at the end of the Year - - - =

* Pursuant to the Scheme of Amangement approved by Hon’ble NCLT dated 28th July 2023, all the assets and liabilities of the PureSoftware Private Limited (herein referred to
as Demerged Company ) has been transferred to the Company and thus Company needs to take on record and approve the adoption of ESOP Scheme 2021 and 2022 of the
demerged entity in the Company. (Refer Note No 40)
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Note-40
Scheme of Arrangement

During the financial year 2023-24, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal New Delhi, special bench, (NCLT) vide order dated July 28, 2023 has sanctioned the Scheme of
Arrangement (Scheme) between PureSoftware Private Limited (Demerged Company) and the Company for demerging the business of software development and services
business of Demerged Company and merging with the Company under section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 from the appointed date i.c. April 01, 2023. The Scheme
became effective on August 10, 2023 on filing of orders with the Registrar of Companies.

The accounting effect of this Scheme in the Conselidated financial statements has been given as under:-

(i) The Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been prepared after giving effect of Scheme in accordance with the applicable
guidelines as per [ndian Accounting Standard 103 “Business Combination™,

(i) The Company has issued one equity share of Rs.1 each for each equity share held by the equity sharcholders of Demerged Company and one preference share of Rs 122 each
for 100 preference shares held by the preference sharcholders of Demerged Company as on the record date.
(Refer Note 13 & 14 for Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity and preference shares).

(iii) Reduction of Share Capital

The pre-merger equity shares of Company (i.e. 1,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 1/- each), have been cancelled in accordance with the Scheme. No consideration is payable to the
sharcholders of the Company on account of cancellation of such pre-merger equity share capital. The Company has debited its Share Capital Account with the nominal value of
shares cancelled and credited the same to the Capital Reserve Account i its books of account,

(iv) Employce Stock Option Plan

In respect of stock options granted by Demerged Company under the ESOP schemes, (he Company has issued stock options to the eligible employees after taking into account the
share exchange ratio and on terms and conditions not less favourable than those provided under the ESOP schemes of Demeraed Company under a New Stock Option Plan
created by Company.,

A summary of the assets, liabilities and reserves incorporated as at appointed date (i.e April 01, 2023) is as follows:

(v) Computation of Capital Reserve: In Lakhs
Particulars Amount in INR
Assets transferred pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement 10,233
Less: Liabilities transferred pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement 5,538
Net assets transferred (A) 4,696
Total transferred reserves and surplus

Employee Stock Option Reserve 123
Retained carnings 1,521
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 384
3,23,25,246 Fully paid-up equity shares issued to the equity shareholders of the demerged Company 323
10 Fully paid-up preference shares issued to the preference sharcholders of the demerged Company 0
Aggregate of transferred reserve and fresh issue of equity and preference shares pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement (B) 2,352
Capital Reserve (A-B) 2,344

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the existing name of Company and Demerged Company have been changed to “Puresoftware Private Limited” and “Pure Fintech Private
Limited” respectively as an integral part of the Scheme, for which the Company is taking necessary steps under the Companies Act, 2013 to give effect in this regard.

The Company has taken accounting effect of the scheme w.e.f appointed date i.c 01 April 2023, therefore, previous year figures are not comparable.

The assets and liabilities of the Demerged Company relating to the software development and services business undertaking transferred to the Company as per Scheme of
Arrangement.




PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note41

Consolidated Net Assets and Net Profit Reconcilication

Net Assets, i.e Total assets minus total

Share in profit or loss

Liabilities
Name of the entity As Yo of As % of
consolidated Amount consalidated Amount
net assets profit or loss
1 2 3 4 5

Parent

1. PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited 169% 7.041 104% 6,078
Indian Subsidiary

I. PureConference Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 0% - 0% -
Foreign Subsidiaries

1. PureSoftware Ptc Ltd -71% -2,971 -1% 88
2. PurcSoftware HK Ltd 1%) 62 1% 52
3. PureSoftware Corp 22% 925 0% 3
4. PureSoftware Sdn Bhd 6% 262 1% 47
5. Pure Software Pvt Ltd (UK) -1% -33 -1% 31
6. PureSoftware Technology, S. de R.L. de C.V 0% -12] -1%, -68
7. PureSoftware Africa Ltd -8% =326 1% 38
8. Puresoftware Technologies Romania S.R.L. 1% 38 0% 0
9. PureSoftware Pty Ltd 0% 0% -0
10. PureSofiware Pvt Ltd (Nepal) -1%) 21 0% 22
Consolidated Adjustments -19% =791 -2% -146
As per Consolidated Financial Statements 4,174 5,866

Net Assets, i.e Total assets minus total .
IR Share in profit or loss
Liabilities
Name of the entity in the As % of As % of
consolidated Amount consolidated Amount
net assets profit or loss
1 2 3 4 5

Parent

1. PurcSoftware Technologies Private Limited 75% 4,826 130% 1357
Indian Subsidiary

1. PureConference Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 0% -0 1% 8
Foreign Subsidiaries

1. PureSofiware Ple Ltd 24% 1,566 -85% -893
2. PureSoftware HK Ltd 0% 8 4% 38
3. PureSoftware Corp 14% 898 12% 125
4. PureSoftware Sdn Bhd 3%)| 196 3% 33
5. Pure Software Pvt Ltd (UK) 0%) -2 -5% 51
6. PureSoftware Technology, S. de R.L. de C.V 1% 63 5% 57
7. PureSoftware Africa Lid -5%| -350) 2% 20
8. Puresoftware Technologies Romania S.R.L. 1% 36 0% 0
9. PurcSoftware Pty Ltd 0%| -0j 2% 21
10. PureSoftware Pvt Ltd (Nepal) 0%)| 1 0%, -1
Consolidated Adjustments -12% -786 32% 330
As per Consolidated Financial Statements 6,457
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Note No: 42 (1)

These cansolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally aceepted accounting principles in India under the historical cost convention on an
acerual basis. These financial statements have been prepared ta camply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under the Companics (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, specified under Section 133 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. All assets and liabilitics have been classified as current or non-|
current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule IIT (Division [) to the Companies Act, 2013,

Enterprise Consolidated as Subsidary in accordance with (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015:-

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Name of the Enterprise In(c:::;:rzl‘;zn Proportion of ownership Proportion of ownership

Interest Interest
PureSoftware Pte Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary) Singapore 100% 100%
PureSoftware Corp (Step-Down subsidiary) USA 100% 100%
PureSoflware Technology, 8. de R.L. de C.V (Step-Down subsidiary) Mexico 99.90% 99.90%
Pure Software Private Limited (Step-Down subsidiary) UK 100% 100%
PureSoftware Sdn Bhd (Step-Down subsidiary) Malaysia 100% 100%
PurcSoliware Pty Ltd (Step-Down subsidiary)# Australia 100% 100%
PureSoftware HK Limited (Step-Down subsidiary) Hong Kong 100% 100%
PureSoftware Africa Ltd (Step-Down subsidiary) Kenya 100% 100%
Puresofiware Technologies Romania S.R.L. (Step-Down subsidiary) Romania 100% 100%
PureSoftware Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary) Nepal 100% 100%
PureConlerence Solutions Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)t India 100% 100%

(a) The Board of Directors of PureSoftware Pte Ltd (Singapore, Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company) in its meeting held on Dec 01, 2023 decided to voluntary wind- up
PurcSofiware Pty Ltd (Australia) and it was wound up on 07 June 2024,

(b) The Board of Directors in ils mecting held on April 19, 2024 decided to voluntary wind- up Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company- PureConference Solutions Private
Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary) and it was wound up on 05 May 2025.)

(<) The Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 18, 2024 decided to voluntary wind- up Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company- PureSoflware Private Limited
{Nepal- Wholly Owned Subsidiary).

Note No: 42 (2)
Undisclosed Income
The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under]
the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such us, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961). Further, there was no previously unrecorded income and no
additional assets were required to be recorded in the books of account during the year.

Note No: 42 (3)
Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, Further, the Company has also not|
received any deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency.
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Note No. 43

A. Segment Reporting
The Group 4
1) Products & Platforms

examines the Group's performance on the basis of its business units and has identified two reportable segments:

The proup provides cloud-ficsi, multi-tenanted, open API ased platform, offering an Omni-Channel Financial Services salution for ils wsees. The group provide services like Digital Wallet & Payments, Loan Lifecycle]
Munagemeat, Buy Now Pay Later, Cloud-Based Core Banking. SME Banking, Agent Banking, Card & Merchant Management, and Layalty Management.

2) IT Business Services

The group is imvwived in the areas of Digilal Engincering and Digital Tronsformation services. We provide sarviess like Product Develoy Product S Embedded Software, Appli <l Cuality]
Eogineering, Tmpls & Support, Appli Modernization, Data & Analytics, Cload Services, Cyber Serurity, Custonyer I GenAT aud Intelli i

B. Summarised segment information
Sepnent revenue, segment results athier information as at/for the year March 31, 2025 In Lakhs
Year ended March 31, 2025 Products & Platforms IT Business Services Total

Revenue from confracls with cusfemers

External customers 6,462 33,381 40,043
Inter-segment - - -
Allocated Interest Iuceme 9% - 96
Segmient revenne 6,558 33,581 40,139
Sepment results 2768 {253 12,590
Reconciliation to profit sfier tax:

Inlcrest Incoms 13
Other Unallocable Income ~157
Unallocable Finance Costs 58
Unallocated Deprecistion s
Othicr Unallocable cxpenses 3,767
Tax 2,064
Profit for the year 5565
Other Informalion

Semmend Assets 215 1.876 10,027

<

Derivative instruments 23
Unallocated Assets 6,716
Total Assefs 16,766
|Segment Liabitity 509 3256 4,065
Reconciliation ta tatal liabilities:

Dorrowings 6272
Unallocated Liabilitics 2,253
Tutal Liabilitles 12.591
Segment revenue. segmenl reveits other information as at/for the vear March 31, 2024 In Lakhs

Year ended March 31, 2024 Prodocts & Platforms IT Business Services Total

Revenue from contracts with costemers

External customers 4,367 30,651 35017
Inter-segment - - -
Allocated Other Income u 34 35
Segment revenue 4,388 30,685 35072
{Segment results 649 9,506 8,858
Reconciliation to prafit after tax:

Interest Income 5
Other Unallocable Income -89
Unallocable Financs Costs 132
Unallocated Dipresiation 580
Other Unallocable expenscs 6,404
Tax 612
Prafit for the year 1,046
Other Information

Segment Assels 2,038 6,750 8,788

Tliati I 35

Decivative instrunients -
Unallocated Assets 4,509
Total Asscls 13,296
Scpment Lishility 1,007 3,062 4,069
Reconciliation to {ofal liabilities:

Borrowings -
Unallocated Liabilities 2,77
Total Lisbilities 6810

C. Entity-wide disclosures
i) The amount of revenue from external customers broken down by location of customers is shown below:
for the year cided
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Tndia 733 5384

usA 1822 13,011

Europe 2017 3213

Others 17,981 13,399

40,043 35017
ii) Reveaue from customers of the Group which is individually more than 10 percent of the Group's total revenue:
for the year ended
Partlcunlars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
One customers 20.20% -
| Two customers = 32.50%]

Revenue and expenses directly anribulable to segments are reported under each repanable segment. All other expenses which are not attributable or allocable fo segments have been disclosed a8 othier unallocable expenses.

The asscts and liabilities direccly atfributable to segments are reporied under cach reportable scgment. All othier asscis and liabilities which are not attribatable or allocable to segments have been disclosad as Unallocated)

Assets & Unallocated Liabilities.
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Al

A2

B1

First Time Adoption t;f Ind AS

This is the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applicd in preparing the financial
statemnents for the year ended 31 March 2025. in preparation of the opening Ind AS balance sheet as at 01 April 2023 (the date of transition). For periods up to and including
the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards natified under Section 133 of the Compaies
Act 2013, read together with pargraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 (as amended) (‘previous GAAP"). This nole explains the
adjustments made by the Company in restating its previous GAAP financial statements, including the Balanee Sheet as at 01 April 2023 and the comparative financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024,

Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applicd in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Ind AS optional exemptions

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS 101, First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue wilh the carrying value for all of ils properiy, plant and
equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as on the date
of transition . This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Asscts.

Accordingly, the company has clected to measure all of its property, plant and cquipment at their carrying value as at the transition date and use that as deemed cost as on the
date of transition. The company has elected o measure its intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Lease Accounting

The Company has accounted for leases applying Ind AS 116 as at the transition date, availing the following optional exemptions:

a) Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

b) Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the date of initial application

¢) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-usc assct at the dale of initial application

d) Adopted the modified retrospective approach to cansider the Right of Use asset as at the transition date Lo be equal to the Lease Liability computed at the present value of
the lease rentals over the expected lease tenure, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments refating to that lease recopnised in the Balance Sheet
immediately before the date of transition to Ind AS.

€) Applied hindsight at the date of transition in determining the lease term where the contract coniains options to extend or terminate the lease.

Ind AS mandatory exceptions
De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments,
prospectively for tmnsactions occurring on or after the date of trnsition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows a first
time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, retrospectively from a date of the entity"s choosing, provided that the
information needed to apply Ind AS 109, Fi ial Instr s, to financial assets and financial lizbilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was abtained at the
time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has clected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109, Finaneial Instruments, prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.
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B2  Classification and measurement of financial asscts

The classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments are met based on facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition.

Financial assets can be measured using effective mterest method by assessing its contractual cash flow characteristics only vn the basis of facts and circumstances existing at
the date of transition and if it is impraclicable to assess elements of modified tme value of money i.c. the use of elTective interest method, fair value of financial asset at the
date of transition shall be the new carrying amount of that asset. The measurcment exemption applies for financial linbilities us well.
Applying a requirement is impracticable when the entity cannot apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so. It is impracticable to apply the changes retraspectively
if:

a) . _— . .
The effects of the retrospective application or retrospective restatement are not determinable; or

b)  The retrospective application or restatement requires assumplions about what management’s intent would have been in that period; or

c) The retrospective application or retrospective restatement requires significant estimates of and it is impossible to distinguish objectively information about those
estimates that existed at that time.

B3  Estimates
In accordance with Ind AS, as at the date of transition to Ind AS an entity’s estimates shall be consistent with the estimates made for the same date in accordauce with
previous GAAP (afier adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), uniess there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2023 are consi: with the esti as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP except for impairment of financial assets
based on Expected credit loss in accordance with Ind AS on the date of transition as this was not required as per previous GAAP,

C Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, requires an entity to reconcile equity, tatal comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The
following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS as at the periods specified below.

Cl  Reconciliation of other equity
The Company has also prepared a reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2024 and 01 April 2023 under the previous GAAP with the equity as reparted in these financial
statements under Ind AS, that reflect the impact of Ind AS on the components of statement of Balance Sheet which is presented below:

As at Asat
Particatary Nete 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Total Equity as per previous GAAP 6,121 -5
Adjustments on account of:
- Security deposits accounted at amortised cost C6.1 7 -
- Accounting for Leases C6.3 -36 -
- Foreign exchange differences C6.6 and C6.14 -3 -
~ Fop ilabl
Deferred tax asset recog on losses to C6.8 45 R
carry forward under
Income Tax Act, 1961
Subtotal 6,134 -5
[Totul Equity as per Ind AS 6,134 -5
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C2: Reconciliation of asscts and liabilities presented in the Balance Sheet prepared as per Previous GAAP and as per Ind AS as at 01 April 2023 is as
fallows:

Adjustment on transition to

Particulars i 3 =
articu Previous GAAP Ind AS

Ind AS

A Assets

1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment - = -
(c) Intangible assets a - -
(d) Right-of-usc asscts - - -
(¢) Financial asscts - " a
(1) Other financial assets - = =
(f) Deferred tax asset (net) 2 % 2
(g) Other non-current assets = - -

2. Current assets
(b) Financial assets = g -
(ii) Trade receivables ] ] PS -
(iii) Cash and bank balances 1 1
(v) Other financial assets - « -
(c) Other current assets - - =

TOTAL 3 - 3

B Equity and liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital 1 - 1
Instruments entirely equity in nature - E &
Other cquity (5) 5)
“ - @)

bl o el

1 Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
(a) Financial liabilitics - - =
(i) Borrowings 5 5
(ii) Lease liability - = &
(111) Other financial liabilitics % g .
(b) Provisions = - -
(c) Other non-current liabilities - " &

=

Z. Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings - & &
(ii) Lease liability @ - -
(ifi) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small - e &
Enterprises
Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than Micro 1 1
Enterprises and Small Enterpriscs

(iv) Other financial liabilities 5 - .

(b) Provisions - - .
(c) Other current liabilities 1 1

2 - 2

TOTAL 3 - 3

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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is as lollows:

Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025

C2: Reconciliation of assets and liabilities presented in the Balance Sheet prepared as per Previous GAAP and as per Ind AS as at 31 March 2024

Adjustment on transition to

Particulars Previous GAAP* Ind AS Ind AS
A Assets
1i Non-current assels -
() Property, plant and equipment 356 -1 357
(c) Intangible assets 258 4 254
(d) Right-of-use assets - -529 529
(c) Financial assets -
(i) Other financial assets - 97 97
(f) Deferred tax asset (net) 557 45 602
(g) Other non-current assets 315 148 167
1,486 =520 2,006
2. Current assets
(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 6,626 1 6,625
(iii) Cash and bank balances 2,335 0 2335
(v) Other financial assets 2,190 20 2,170
(c) Other current assels 117 43 160
11.268 -22 11,290
TOTAL 12,754 542 13,296
B Equity and liabilities
I Equity
1. Equity share capital 324 0 3
2 Instruments entirely equity in nature - -0 0
3. Otherequity 6,121 -13 6,134
6,445 -13 6,458
I Liabilitics
1. Non-current liahilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease linbility - -331 331
(iii) Other financial liabilitics - - -
(b) Provisions 833 0 833
833 =331 1,164
2. Current liabilities - %
(a) Contract Liability - -205 205
(a) Financial liabilities - -
(i) Borrowings - -
(ii) Lease liability - =210 210
(iii) Trade payables - -
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises 12 42 54
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
Micro Enterpriscs and Small Enterprises 455 -1,115 1,570
(iv) Other financial liabilities - -1,785 1,785
(¢) Current tax liability (net) - -7 7
(b) Provisions 369 -509 878
(c) Other current liabilities 4,640 3,674 966
5,476 -199 5,675
TOTAL 12,754 -542 13,296

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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C4: Reconciliation of profit and loss presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss prepared as per Previous GAAP and as per Ind AS as at 31
March 2024 is as follows:

Adjustment on transition
Particulars Previous GAAP* to Ind AS
Ind AS
Income
1. Revenue from operations e 35,114 ()] 35,017
2. Other income 107 (136) -29
3. |Total revenue (1 +2) 35221 (233) 14,988
4. Expenses
(d) Employee benefits expense 25,291 170 25,461
(f) Depreciation and amortisation 362 218 580
(e) Finance costs 92 40 132
(g) Other expenses 7,756 (599) 7,157
Total expenses 33,501 (171) 33,330
5 Profit before tax (3-4) 1,720 (62) 1,658
6. Tax expenses:
(a) Current tax §95 3 §98
(b) Deferred tax -307 (53) -360
© Income tax of earlier Year 77 3) 74
Total tax expense 665 (33) 612
T Profit for the year (5-6) 1,055 ()] 1,046
8. Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans - 28 28
Iacome tax effect - -7 -7
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a - 32 32
foreign aperation
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - 53 53
Total comprchensive income for the year (7+8) 1,055 44 1,099

C5: Reconciliation of cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
Amount in Rs.

Adjustment on transition

Particulars Previous GAAP* to Ind AS
Ind AS
Al Net cash flow from operating activities 3,759 128 3,887
B. Net cash flow from investing activities -98 6 -92
C: Net cash flow from financing activitics -2,176 (168) -2,344
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,485 (34) 1,451
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency - 32 32

cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1 - 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents acquired pursuant to scheme of

arrangement 850 - 850
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,335 0) 2,335

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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Co
C6.1

c62

C6.3

C6.5

C6.6

Ce.7

Cé68

C6.9

Ca.10

C6.11

Ce6.12

Ca.13

C6.14

Cé6.15

C6.16

C6.17

C6.18

Notes:

Sccurity Deposits

‘The Company has placed interest free sccurity deposits with its lessors which under the previous GAAP was accounted at the nominal value. Ind AS 109 requires
discounting of such deposits to the present value at inception with the reduction being considered as a Right of Use Asset (ROU), The ROU is amortised over the
expected period of lease to Profit aud Loss. Correspondingly interest income is accreted on a time proportion basis with the corresponding debit to the security
deposit. The impact of this adjustment to the equity on the transition date is Rs NIL with a corresponding adjustment in Sceurity Deposits. The Profit and Loss for
the year ended 31 March 2024 is adjusted for the income amortised amounting to Rs. 7 lacs .

Defined benefit obligation

Both under the Previous GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognized costs related 1o its post-cmplayment defined benefit plan on an actuasial basis. Under previous

GAAP, the entire cost, including actvarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, compri: of ial gains and losses are
ized immediately in the Bal Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit 1o retained camings through OCI. Thus the employee benefit cost is reduced by

such amount with a corresponding adjustment on defined benefit plans has been recognized in the OCI net of tax. As a result of this change, the profit for the year

ended 315t March, 2024 increased by T 28 lacs There is no net impact on the total cquity as at 31st March, 2024.

Leases

Under the previous GAAP, Rent expenses on premises will be charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line basis. Under Ind A8, lessees arc required 1o
recognise leases on the balance sheet (unless exempt by the standard), which will reflect their right w use an asset for a period of time and the associated liability for
payment. All lease liabilitics arc to be measured with reference to an estimate of the leose tem, which includes optional leasc periods when an entity is reasonably
certain to excise an option to extend(or not to terminate) a lease. On ition, the ad of the new lard resulled in recognitian of Right-of-Use® asset of
NIL, and a leasc liability of NIL Lakhs as at April 1, 2023,

The accounting for ROU and lease liability under Ind AS and the accounting for amortisation (Rs 218 lacs) and interest acerucd (Rs 58 Lacs) respectively which
was not applicable in previous GAAP and is now included in Ind AS Fi ial stat The rent exp for Rs 240 lacs recorded in previous GAAT (IGAAP)
has been reversed. The combined impact of the aforementioned adjustments is Rs 36 Lacs.

Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits
otherwise. Items of income and cxpensc that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss as *other comprehensive income™
inchudes re-measurements of defined benefit plans, forcign exchange differences arising on translation of forcign operations. The concept of other comprehensive
income did not exist under the Previous GAAP,

Finance Cost

Under Ind AS, interest paid 1o statutory authoritics for Rs 18 lacs has been reclassified to other expenses. Under IGAAP, this has been reclassified in finance cost.

Forcign Exchange Gain/Loss
Under Ind AS, forcign exchange gain or loss for Rs 144 lacs has been reclassified to other income. Under [GAAP, this has been reclassified in other expenses.

Other equity
Adjustments to retained camings and other comprehensive income has been made in accordance with Ind AS, for the above mentioned line items.

Deferred Tax

The Company has unused tax losses of carier years available for setoff against the taxable income of future years. In the absence of virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence, the Campany had not recognised a deferred tax asset on such unusucd losses available for carry forward and setoff in fiture years. Based on an
evaluation under Ind AS, the Company has assessed the probability of future tax profits against which the unused tax losses will be available for setoff and
recognised the deferred tax assel as al the transition date with the consequent increass of deferred tax assct and the corresponding adjustment 1o the retained
camnings amounting to Rs 45 lacs.

Instruments entirely cquity in nature
Non-Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (NCCPS) are reclassified to [nstruments entirely equity in nature in Ind AS, and under IGAAP it is
reclassificd in share capital.

Contract Liability
Unearned revenue for Rs 204 Iacs are reclassified under Contract Liability in Ind AS and under Igaap it was reclassified in Other Carrent Liabilities.,

Provisions

Provisions under Ind AS include: (i) Amount of Rs 455 lakhs pertaining to performance bomus for India has been reclassified in provision for performance bonus
from employee benefit payables in IGAAP.

{ii) Amount of Rs 61 lakhs pertaining to performance bonus for group companies (cxcept India) has been reclassified in provision for perfonmance bonus from
expenses payables in IGAAP.

Employee benefit cxpenses
(a) Actuarial gain or loss as per Ind AS for Gratuity for Rs 28 lacs has been reclassified from employee benefit expenses in IGAAP to Other Comprehensive Income.

() I related exp for empl for Rs 135 Jacs has been reclnssified from Other Expenses 1o employee benefit expenses.

Processing charges
Processing charges for Rs 90 Jacs has been reclassificd to Revenue from Contracts with customers fram Other Expenses.
Revenue from Contracts with custamers

Difference in R from contracts with is due to : foreign currency revenue converied at different rates in Ind AS as compared o IGAAP.

Intangible Assets
The difference in account of different forcign exchange rates used in preparation of financial statements.

Tangible Asscts .
The difference in account of different foreign exchange rates used in preparation of financial statements.

Trade Payables & Expenses Payables

(i) Provision for expenses are reclassified to Trade Payables under Ind AS, however il was reclassified in Other Current Liabilitics in IGAAP.

(ii) Under Ind AS financials, MSME vendors related o other expenses payables are also clubbed in trade payables, however, in IGAAP, these were included in
expenses payables in other current linbilitics.

Security Deposits
Security Deposils are reclassified to Other Financial Assets under Ind AS, from Current assels under IGAAP.




[PureSoftware Technologies Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Special Purpose Financial Statements as at 31 March 20235
(Al anronts in INR lakhs, wunless otherwise stated)

Note No:45

During the previous year, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 18, 2024 decided to dispose off some of the assets related to Products & Platforms Scgment due to unfavourable market conditions.
Comsequently, the Company has sold certain tangible assets having carrying value of Rs. 215 Lakhs for a consideration of Rs. 15.00 Lakhs and also paid custom duty & related charges amounting to Rs. 35 Lakhs for
debonding of aforesaid assets.

Note No:46
During the previous year, the Board of Director of the Holding Company in their meeting held on March 18, 2024, hus proposed 1o cancel all the wunvested stock options outsianding as on March 18, 2024 under the ESOP

Scheme 2021, ESOP Scheme 2022 and ESOP Scheme 2024 and all the employees related to aforesaid scheme will be compensated in amount decided by the N ion and ion C itlee and the same has|
been approved by the Members of the Company in the EGM held on March 18, 2024. Accordingly, the aceelerated cost of Rs. 475.78 Lakhs (at Consolidated Level) pertaining to unvested options granted to employees of]
the Group has been charged (o statement of profit & loss and the Employee Stock Options Outstanding has been wransferred 1o General Reserve on account of cancellation of options.

Note No:47
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, other then the transactions undertaken in the normal course of business and in accordance with extent regulatory guidelines as applicabl

(i) No funds (which are material either individually or in (he aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed fands or share premiom of any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company tof
oc in any olher person ar entity, including forcign entity (Tmenmediaries”), with the understanding, Whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Tntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend ot invest in other]
persons or entities identified in any manuer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.
(ii) No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregaie) have been received by the Company from any person or entity inclading foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether|
Jrecorded in writing or otherwisc, that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or ivest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Tunding Party ("Ultimate|
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note No:48
1. The Compay docs ool have any capital work in progress and I assels under develor
1L The Company is not a Core Investment Compuny (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. The Group has no CICs as part of the Group.

Note No:49

The Company is a whally-owned subsidiary of Happiest Minds Technologies Limited and satisfies the conditions specified under Rule 6 of the Companics (Accounts) Rules, 2014, read with paragraph4(a) of Ind AS 110
— Consolidated Finuncial St Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the fequi ta prepare Consolidated Financiul § {C¥S) under the Companics Act, 2013. However, the Company has
voluntarity prepared Special Purpose Consolidated Financial S| (SPCFS) for the year ended 3151 March 2025, for intemal reporting and decisi king p These SPCES have been prepared
in compliauce with the principles of Ind AS applicable to lidated financial stat and have been audited by the stanutory auditors of the Company under a scparate engagement, These audited SPCFS are not
intended for statutory filing under the Companies Act, 2013 and do not form past of the financial statements required to be presented to the sharcholders. The audited financial statements presented herewith are the
standalone financial stalements, prepared in | with the requi of the Ce ics Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notificd under the Companies (Tndian A ing Standards)
Rules, 2015, A copy of the audited Special Purpose Consolidated Financial S mity be made available to interested stakeholders upon request, subject to the discretion and approval of the Board of Directors.

Note No:50
The Company does not have any charges or satisfactions yet 1o be registered with the registrar of the companies beyond the statutory period.

Note No:51

The Scheme of Amrangements has been appraved by the Hon'ble National Compauy Law Tribuaal New Delhi, special beneh, (NCLT) vide order dated July 28, 2023 in terms of sections 230 to 232 of the Companics Act,|
2013, the ciect of such Scheme of A have been d for in the books of account of the Company ‘it accardance with the Scheme” and *in 1 with Indian A ing Standard -103 "Business,
Combination”.

Note No:52

There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

Note No:53
| The Company is not deelared wilful defilter by any bank or finamcial Tnstittion or other lender.

Note No:54
During the year, the Company does pot have any iransactions with the companics struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013

Note No:55

The Company has cemplied with the clanse (87) of section 2 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Nole No:56

The Company has na capital comumitments as at 31 March 2025,

Note No:57

Prior year figures have been reclassified 1o conform to current year’s classification.

[Note No:58

Pursuant to the acquisition by Happiest Minds Limited as detailed in Note 13, the Group lias prepared these lidated financial based an Ind AS 110, C lidated Financial Si and lated its
subsidiaries in foreign currency to reporting cuimency based on Ind AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, The calculations for the amount of Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR) which
umounted to Rs. 384 lacs a5 on st April 2023 (opening balanee) under the previous GAAP are not readily available and were maintained manually p quisition. The difference ing to Rs. 474 lacs between the

upening balance from previous GAAP and the balance as computed based on Ind AS have been posted as a transition adjustinent to Retained Eamings based on the guidance of Ind AS 101, First Time Adaption of Indian
Accounting Standards. The Group lias subsequently complicd with the above guidance for calculation of foreign exchange and the balances as reported on 315t March 2024 and 315t March 2025 arc in compliance with
Ind AS 21.




